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Key Features and  
Statement of Principles
The Trust is an unauthorised, tax exempt 
open-ended property unit trust and an 
Alternative Investment Fund (“AIF”) as 
defined in the UK Alternative Investment 
Fund Managers Regulations 2013 (SI 
2013/1773). It was created in 1967 in the 
UK to enable Unit Holders to participate 
mutually in a professionally managed 
scheme investing in real property 
without prejudicing their tax exempt 
status whilst also freeing them from 
the burden of management.

The objective of the Trust is to achieve investment 
returns consistent with a diversified and actively 
managed UK property portfolio.

Key Features
The Trust is a balanced property unit trust which owns a 
diversified portfolio of real estate investments on behalf 
of underlying Unit Holders. Its key features are as follows:

 A Performance objective – To outperform the 
benchmark by 50 basis points per annum on a 
three-year rolling basis. 

 A Investment philosophy – A core/satellite approach to 
portfolio construction. This reflects a core portfolio 
of property investments expected broadly to match 
property market returns, but with prospects for 
enhanced returns through exposure to higher risk/ 
return investments in the satellite component. 

 A Fees – To ensure alignment between the Trust 
Manager and returns to Unit Holders, the Trust 
Manager receives a base fee which is augmented with 
a performance fee for outperformance against the 
Trust’s benchmark. Fees payable to the Trust Manager 
are capped. 

 A The Appointments Committee is wholly independent 
of the Trust Manager and is responsible for the 
appointment and removal of the Trust Manager, the 
Trustee, the independent auditors, each subject to 
ratification by Unit Holders, and the independent 
valuers, and the remuneration of both the Trust 
Manager and Trustee. 

 A The Trust Manager is the legal operator of the Trust. 

Statement of Principles
Federated Hermes Property Unit Trust operates under 
the following core principles:

 A The Trust observes high standards of integrity and 
fair dealing at all times, in accordance with the 
obligations set out in the Trust Deed for the benefit 
of Unit Holders. 

 A The Trust maintains an open dialogue with Unit 
Holders. As part of this it provides Unit Holders with 
timely information enabling them to make informed 
decisions about the Trust. 

 A The Trust seeks to enhance the capital and income 
potential of its assets in a manner consistent with its 
risk objectives and investment policy. 

 A The Trust will manage its assets taking into 
consideration the relevant environmental and 
socioeconomic risks and opportunities which 
contribute to the potential of an investment to deliver 
long-term investment performance for Unit Holders. 

 A The Trust actively engages with its occupiers to 
develop long term relationships in order to maximise 
portfolio value for its Unit Holders. 

 A The Trust complies with The Association of Real 
Estate Funds’ Code of Practice and with relevant 
codes or standards in force that apply to the Trust. 

 A The Trust is committed on a sound commercial basis 
to embedding the principles of responsible property 
investment in all of its real estate investment and 
asset management practices.

Further information about the Trust including its 
Strategy and Objectives and Constraints is available  
in the General Information Memorandum at  
www.hermes-investment.com/ukw/capabilities/
private-markets/real-estate/fhput/

Further information on the Appointments Committee 
and Trust Manager is set out on page 31.

To ensure alignment between 
the Trust Manager and returns to 
Unit Holders, the Trust Manager 
receives a base fee which is 
augmented with a performance 
fee for outperformance against 
the Trust’s benchmark.

Federated Hermes Property Unit Trust4



Financial Highlights
Year to 25 March 2022

(2021: £1,280 million)

£1,489m
Unit holders’ funds

(2021: 25.5 pence)

24.1 pence

Distribution per unit*

(2021: 1.1%)

21.1%
Total return to unit holders

(2021: -1.3%) for relative performance 
for the year to 25 March 2022

-1.1%
Relative performance for the year**

(2021: £6.53)
£7.63
Net asset value per unit

The Trust continues to 
deliver outperformance 
over five and ten year 
periods.

Unit holder performance – total returns for the period (% p.a.)
As at 25 March 2022

One Year Three Years Five Years Ten Years

FHPUT MSCI/AREF UK Other Balanced Property Fund Index

0

5

10

15

20

25

21.1
22.5

7.6 7.9 8.3 8.0
9.7

8.4

**Relative performance is calculated geometrically.  
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Source: MSCI/AREF UK Quarterly Property Fund Index.

* Prior year included a one off lease incentive adjustment of  
3.31 pence per unit.



Chairman’s Report
As the COVID-19 recovery continues, there have been new 
challenges from increasing inflationary pressures in the 
economy, exacerbated by the outbreak of war in Ukraine. 
Given this uncertainty it is pleasing to see that FHPUT has 
outperformed the MSCI/AREF Other Balanced Property 
Fund Index over the ten year period by 1.2%, delivering a 
return of 9.7% per annum. Over one year, the Trust has 
returned 21.1% which is its highest absolute return since 
2006. Whilst this is below the peer group return of 22.5%, in 
the recent period of elevated market volatility it highlights 
the consistent and reliable long term returns the Trust 
delivers to its investors.

During the year the Trust Manager made a small but 
strategic acquisition of an adjoining interest at West 
Horndon Industrial Estate in Essex for £2.1m which has 
subsequently helped facilitate the sale of the whole site for 
£92.8m in July 2022. A  competitive bidding process took 
advantage of the significant demand for industrial assets 
and the price achieved represents a premium of 39% to the 
pre-sale valuation in February of £66.6m.  The disposal has 
been a material driver of the Trust’s performance over the 
year and will further enhance returns in Q2 2022.  The sale 
is another good example of the Trust Manager’s historic 
discipline in executing timely and accretive investment 
transactions through the market cycles. 

Over the period the Trust Manager has principally 
concentrated its asset management efforts on securing and 
enhancing the portfolio’s income profile. This reflects its 
strategic recognition of income as the primary driver of 
long term returns from UK commercial real estate. I was 
delighted to see that numerous new lettings, lease 
renewals and rent reviews were completed across the 
portfolio despite the ongoing challenges from the Covid 
pandemic. The most impressive results were achieved on 
the portfolio’s industrial assets, with the Trust Manager 
capitalising on the buoyant occupational market and the 
quality of the Trust’s holdings in this sector. During the year 
ended 25 March 2022, there were 45 new lettings and lease 
renewals completed that delivered a 12% uplift in rental 
income. The strong focus on rent collection also continued 
with some excellent outcomes on the recovery of 
pandemic-related arrears, particularly in the severely 
impacted hospitality sector. This highlighted the balanced, 
responsible approach taken by the Trust Manager, 
accommodating genuine distress but being robust with 
those companies seeking to adopt a ‘can pay, won’t pay’ 
policy. Overall, the Trust Manager delivered a reliable 
distribution yield of 3.16% for the year.

The Trust Manager continues to 
recognise the critical importance of 
integrating ESG-related factors into the 
Trust’s assets, this importance only heightened by the 
current economic, political and social challenges facing the 
UK and globally. Apart from evaluating and progressing 
various decarbonisation and biodiversity initiatives across 
the portfolio, this work includes ensuring that all properties 
needing EPC remediation will comply with the new 
legislation on lower EPC rated buildings by February 2023. 

With regards to investor flows, there were no new 
subscriptions and modest redemptions totalling around 
£7.5 million. The secondary market remained active with 
units valued at around £75.0 million being traded during 
the year, a very good result. The price at which units are 
selling on the secondary market has been at an average of 
NAV minus 0.08% during the year ended 25 March 2022. 
This continues to emphasise the strength of the Trust and 
the benefit of the secondary market in facilitating investor 
liquidity.

As we navigate the prevailing challenges and uncertainties, 
the Trust Manager remains fully focused on its proactive 
approach to deliver continued long term performance 
through its responsible-led strategy of enhancing income, 
adding value through dynamic asset initiatives and 
optimising sale and purchase activity.

David Nicol 
Chairman 
22 June 2022

David Nicol 
Chairman, 
Appointments Committee

Federated Hermes Property Unit Trust6
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Strategic Overview
Performance Objective

The Trust’s performance 
objective is to outperform the 
benchmark by at least 50 basis 
points per annum on a rolling 
three-year basis, but with an 
emphasis on long-term 
sustainable returns. 

FHPUT is a total return strategy and 
therefore investment returns are a 
combination of both income and capital 
gains. FHPUT’s investment strategy is 
fundamentally as a ‘long’ investor in UK real 
estate, providing well-managed real estate 
exposure to long-term investors through the 
property market cycles. 

Portfolio Strategy

The Manager proposes to 
continue with the current 
investment strategy of 
maintaining a balanced, well-
let, geographically diverse 
portfolio with good income 
growth prospects and 
continues to seek value in the 
market. 

The team seeks to achieve this through a 
combination of bottom-up stock selection 
and top-down sector allocations. A 
thorough understanding of the property 
fundamentals that drive the occupational 
markets and a clear focus on investment 
excellence is essential to achieving 
sustainable risk-adjusted returns. 

Portfolio risk profile & 
Governance

The manager aims to position 
the portfolio to continue to 
deliver strong long-term 
performance for unit holders 
while managing an adequate 
risk profile. 

The FHPUT strategy should be a ‘core’-style 
strategy with certain added-value 
investments through a core/satellite 
approach to portfolio construction. It is 
important to note that the implementation 
of strategy is monitored by the FHPUT 
Committee, which is appointed by investors 
to ensure the portfolio is well managed for 
the benefit of all investors.

Responsible Property 
Investment

At the core of Federated 
Hermes philosophies is the 
commitment to responsible 
environmental, social and 
governance policies and in 
Real Estate this is part of the 
Responsible Property 
Investing. 

The approach delivers better social 
outcomes, and our principles of Responsible 
Property Investment (RPI) are fully 
embedded in our investment process.

West Horndon Industrial Estate
In July 2021 the Manager purchased the long 
leasehold interest of units 67 & 68 on the Horndon 
Industrial Park for £2,125,000, reflecting a net initial 
yield of 5.75%.  The strategy is in line with the current 
business plan to acquire adjoining assets or long 
leasehold interests in existing freeholds as and when 
the opportunity arises.

Portfolio Activity

Dermot Kiernan 
Fund Director



Trust Manager’s Report

 Economic context

Over the course of the year UK GDP showed some 
resilience following the gradual reopening of the 
economy. Strong inflationary pressures from supply/
demand imbalances have seen the introduction of a 
gradual increase in interest rates from the Bank of 
England together with a fiscal tightening. Most recently 
an increased geopolitical risk following the Russian 
invasion of Ukraine has provided a global shock. 
Consumption remained under pressure due to 
persistently high cost-push inflation, intensified by the 
ongoing increase in commodity prices. This will continue 
to erode real incomes over the balance of the year. That 
said, there are some mitigating factors that should 
prevent a sharper slowdown. Most notably, household 
savings have built up during the Covid lockdowns and 
corporates have generally healthy balance sheets, which 
should cushion the hit from high inflation. In addition, 
the labour market is currently strong, with employment 
still expanding with solid wage growth. 

 UK Commercial Real Estate Market

During the year the market continued to experience 
positive investor sentiment which drove the highest 
performance trends seen in recent years. The occupier 
and transactional market showed an increased level of 
activity following the lifting of the Covid restrictions in 
the second half of 2021 and early 2022. Real estate yields 
compared to other assets classes also remained 
acceptable, mainly due to increased inflationary trends. 
The recent strong performance continued to mask the 
sub-sector polarisation seen in recent years. The Covid 

pandemic accelerated some of these trends, but also 
provided an increased level of uncertainty and high 
volatility in the market. This was mainly seen on the 
upside performance trends experienced in the second 
half of this reporting year. 

The industrial sector continued to deliver very strong 
performance mainly backed by increased investor 
demand driven by strong rental growth and a resilient 
occupier market. The sector is expected to continue to 
drive performance due to the strong supply/demand 
imbalance which is boosting rental growth. Within the 
sector, logistics and ‘last mile’ grade A stock proved to 
be the major drivers of performance.

Within the retail sector, as seen earlier in 2021, retail 
warehousing benefited from increasing investor 
confidence with strong yield compression and improving 
expectations of future rental growth. This was backed by 
an increased level of transactional activity with a 
strategic focus on location and alternative use. The 
sector has recovered positively during the Covid 
pandemic thanks to the ability of occupiers to shape 
their business model towards online sales and click and 
collect. There was nevertheless an existing structural 
change which Covid accelerated. High-street shops and 
shopping centres continued to experience further 
declines, but the most recent outlook is showing some 
improvement in sentiment for the best locations where 
there is more limited supply. 

The office sector remained at the centre of investors 
focus regarding its uncertain future post-pandemic. 
This uncertainty has been reflected in an increased 
divergence between prime and secondary assets 

FHPUT valuation summary
As at 25 March 2022

Directly Held Properties
Valuation 

(£m)
Net Rent 

(£m)
Initial Yield 

(%)
Net ERV 

(£m)

Reversionary 
Yield

(%)

Unit Shops 55.1 3.0 5.2 3.4 5.9

Supermarkets 48.3 2.2 4.4 2.1 4.0

Shopping Centres 15.0 1.2 7.4 1.8 11.6

Retail Warehouses 195.2 11.5 5.5 11.8 5.7

Offices 396.9 16.3 3.9 25.4 6.0

Industrials 629.8 19.8 2.9 26.0 3.9

Leisure/Other 155.5 6.8 4.0 6.9 4.1

Sub Total 1,495.8 60.8 3.8 77.4 4.8

Indirect Investments
Net Asset 
Value (£m)

Cash/(Debt) 40.1/(48.0)

Total 1,487.9
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affected by structural changes in occupier demand and 
building requirements. Whilst occupiers are still working 
out their strategies for the return to the office post 
pandemic, the main known trend is the preference for 
high quality ESG credentials. The ongoing divergence 
in quality and sustainability will drive future demand 
for space, which will be a major factor together with 
prime location. 

The hotel and leisure sector remained challenged during 
the year but with the recent lifting of final Covid 
restrictions, they experienced an increased level of 
activity. The residential sector, including emerging 
subsectors such as BTR (Build to Rent) and Co-living, 
also saw strong investor interest with the structural 
undersupply of housing, diversification and potential 
inflation hedging benefits perceived as supporting 
relatively low yield levels. Finally, another existing factor 
which materially accelerated over the year was the 
increased demand for higher energy efficient buildings/
stock in response to the energy crisis. This is not just in 
relation to offices but across all sectors.

 Performance

Over the year the Trust delivered a strong total return to 
unit holders of 21.1% compared to the MSCI AREF 
Other Balanced Property Fund Index of 22.5%. The latter 
was one of the highest annual performance returns seen 
in decades and it was materially ahead of the various 
forecasts seen at the start of this reporting year. Looking 
at the total return breakdown, the fund delivered a 
strong income return for the year (3.6% compared to the 
benchmark of 3.3%) but lower capital growth at 16.9% 
over the year, compared to the benchmark at 18.7%. 
Unlike previous years where performance was boosted 
and crystalised by well-timed disposals, this financial 
year performance was driven by the existing stock in the 
portfolio. The focus of the fund has been mainly on asset 
management activity to improve and diversify the 
existing portfolio potential and reduce risk. The 
Manager remains aware that there is strong latent 
potential on some major added value projects which 
should unlock strong performance over the short to 
medium term (as seen in the first quarter of 2022).

The Manager continued to focus on delivering 
sustainable long-term performance for the Trust’s 
investors and maintained its top quartile performance 
over the 10 year period. Earlier in 2021 the Trust received 
a MSCI award for the highest 10-year annualised risk 
adjusted relative return.

£
  Net investment and 
secondary trading 

During the year, redemptions totalling around £7.5m 
were paid out to investors due to ongoing de-risking 
strategies of some mature Defined Benefits (DB) pension 
schemes. Over the last 12 months the Manager has 
continued to see an active market for secondary units 
with demand from both existing and new investors. 
£75.1m of units were matched over the review year, with 
units largely trading close to NAV. Details of past trades 
are available on the Trust’s website. 

The strong liquidity of the Trust’s units in the secondary 
market, facilitated by the auction service provided by the 
Trust Manager and external third-party providers, 
remains a helpful tool in managing the gradual de-
risking process of some DB investors and the investment 
of new capital. The Trust Manager continues to assess 
potential changes to the fund’s structure to mitigate 
potential liquidity risks and facilitate demand from other 
institutional investors. A further update on this initiative 
and any associated approval process will be provided to 
investors when appropriate. 

  Transactional activity & 
Investment Strategy

During the period, a relatively modest number of 
transactions completed. The strategic focus was centred 
on the existing stock and its optionality. The FHPUT 
investment philosophy reflects a thorough understanding 
of the property fundamentals that drive the occupational 
markets and a clear focus on investment excellence. This 
is driven by the heterogeneous nature of real estate 
assets and means that outperformance can be delivered 
from good stock picking and counter cyclical 
opportunities. Deal flow is provided through the 
investment team’s network of niche agents, with a focus 
on the quality of deal flow. This allows the team to make 
targeted investments that are deliverable. Importantly the 
team is discreet in its buying and selling activities, tending 
to undertake the majority of transactions on an off-market 
basis. The team believes its edge comes from a 
combination of quick decision-making and its strong 
reputation in the property market for delivery.

The UK commercial transactional market proved to be 
resilient and reached volume levels above the pre-
pandemic period, with many transactions hitting record 
prices. This was mainly driven by the strong demand for 
industrials/logistics and retail warehouse assets, but 
prime Central London office stock remained resilient. In 
the current context, the Manager continued to monitor 
the market to find value for new investment 
opportunities whilst also working up some planned 
disposals where the respective asset plans have been 
completed and timing appears favourable. 

Federated Hermes Property Unit Trust10



£  Investment management

During the year the Manager continued with a clear focus 
on maximising the income received from the portfolio’s 
existing assets. This is achieved through understanding 
occupier requirements and building relationships with 
tenants and market agents to retain and grow rents. 

Based on the strategy of both value protection and 
creation, the team ensured that rent reviews and lease 
renewals were implemented in a timely manner, vacancies 
let and refurbishments carried out. Strong relationships 
are maintained by the investment managers with market 
specialists to also ensure that the latest available 
technologies are identified. 

There has also been good progress on planning consents 
which will allow the Trust Manager to increase the long-
term capital value of assets in the portfolio. The Manager 
focused on introducing ESG initiatives across the portfolio 
and worked in conjunction with an ESG market specialist 
to define the implementation of the pathway to Net Zero. 
The Manager continued to develop projects in various 
areas such as biodiversity, rewilding, installation of EVCP 
(Electrical Vehicle Charging Points) together with initiatives 
on sustainable refurbishment & design standards and use 
of alternative energy sources such as solar panels. As seen 
in the September 2021 interim report, the industrial sector 
continued to dominate lettings and lease renewal activity 
across the portfolio. Rental levels continued to rise at a 
record level above ERV. Over the last 12 months to the 
end of March 2022, there were 45 new lettings and lease 
renewals across the industrial sector. The letting activity 
delivered a rent passing growth of 12.4% over the 12 
month period. Good progress on lettings and 
refurbishment activity was also recorded within the office 

and retail warehouse sub-sectors. Project activity 
progressed well with refurbishment/development 
completions, and the Manager remains aware that there is 
good latent added value potential in the portfolio which 
has been delayed by the pandemic. 

 Performance Attribution

We have identified the principal drivers and detractors of 
performance relative to the Trust’s property portfolio 
return. Over the year the attribution continued to be 
dominated by trends of extreme sub-sector polarisation 
mainly driven by the industrial sector on the upside. Within 
the FHPUT property portfolio the industrial sector 
dominated the contribution to performance by increasing 
the overall annual return by 6.5%. This was followed by the 
retail warehouse sector which increased the overall return 
by 0.8%. Both sectors recorded a resilient occupier market 
which fared relatively well during the pandemic, and this 
has been backed by positive investor sentiment. During 
the same year, the Rest of UK offices and Other/Leisure 
sectors reduced returns by -2.7% and -1.6% respectively, 
impacted by ongoing uncertainty affecting investment and 
occupier markets. The Other/Leisure sector remained 
affected by the pandemic restrictions specifically on the 
hotels and public house portfolio. Over the course of the 
financial year the Manager made good progress on arrears 
agreements. Also, rental payments were reinstated 
towards the end of 2021 by some major tenants. The Rest 
of UK office sector was affected by the current investor 
uncertainty over the future office requirements on work 
flexibility, ESG and occupier demand. The portfolio stock 
also carried some voids and the Manager progressed 
positively with some active management activity/
refurbishments.

Attribution of FHPUT Sub-sector Property Returns 
12 Months to 25 March 2022 (basis points)
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Source: Federated Hermes Real Estate. Estimates property portfolio returns. Gross of fees.

Attribution data is relative to the ‘All Property’ portfolio returns and is not relative to the benchmark.
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At property level, the investments that delivered the 
strongest contribution to portfolio return were the 
industrial assets in West Horndon and Rochester (M2 
City Link) reflecting positive investor sentiment and 
rental growth, backed by good results from investment 
management activity. The former was specifically driven 
by a disposal marketing process which generated strong 
purchaser interest. The greatest reductions to the Trust’s 
portfolio return were the aparthotel in Central London 
(Broken Wharf House) and the West End office in Soho 
Square. The former being initially affected by the 
pandemic restrictions but then reversed following their 
gradual lifting and positive outcomes on arrears. The 
latter due to new voids in the building and the related 
plan to refurbish the units sustainably.

 Portfolio Value and Debt

As of 25 March 2022 the Trust’s underlying direct property 
portfolio was valued at £1,495.8m. There were 72 direct 
properties in the portfolio, one joint venture and no 
indirect assets.

The Trust held £40.1 million of cash for investment which 
represented 2.6% of GAV compared to the benchmark 
weighted average of 4.3%. Over the year, the Manager 
continued to focus on an efficient cash management 
strategy to avoid it dragging on performance. The Trust 
continued to hold debt of £48.0m following a drawdown 
from the overall £75.0 million available to facilitate a 
previous investment transaction and this was accretive to 
performance. The Manager is planning to pay back the 
drawdown repayment in 2022, following planned disposal 
activity. As at end of March 2022 this drawdown balance 
accounted for 3.2% of NAV. During the year the Manager 
also extended the revolving debt facility to December 
2023 to provide additional support to the Trust if 
required. The strategy of the Trust to hold either no, or 
very low levels of debt remains currently unchanged.

 Sector Weightings 

On page 19 the Manager provides the Trust’s relative 
sector exposure compared to the Other Balanced 
Property Fund Index benchmark.

As mentioned, during the year the Industrial sector 
delivered a strong contribution to performance. The 
fund’s allocation in this sector remained in line with 
the benchmark as of 25 March 2022. Following the 
record valuation uplift experienced in the industrial 
sector, the Manager has been evaluating potential 
selected disposals to crystalise this strong 
performance. The Manager has also been working on 
projects within the existing industrial stock to increase 
massing and optionality.

Within the retail sector, the Trust’s retail warehouse 
overweight exposure, which followed the counter cyclical 
acquisitions in York and Oxford, provided a strong 
contribution to performance during the year. The retail 
exposure into unit shops, shopping centres and 
supermarket remained broadly in line with the benchmark 
and the Manager remained comfortable with this allocation.

The Trust continues to have an overweight position to 
central London offices, representing 12.1% of the Trust’s 
portfolio compared with 11.5% in the benchmark. These 
assets benefit from being in prime locations, with most 
having the potential opportunity to change the use to 
residential. The office sector exposure into the rest of UK 
stood at 13.7% compared to the benchmark at 14.6%, 
with exposure to some of the major UK cities. The stock 
held in the office portfolio remained of good quality. 
Over the year the Manager has been working on 
selected office stock to assess their decarbonisation 
process and pathway to Net Zero.

The Leisure/Other sector remained slightly in line 
compared to the benchmark and comprises a portfolio 
of public houses and three hotels. The stock in this 
sector remained pretty much resilient and the Manager 
obtained very good results with the tenants on 
collections and arrears. The strategic plan over the next 
few years is to increase exposure into the residential 
sub-sectors such as Build to Rent (BTR) and Co-living 
through new property investment or underlying 
optionality of the existing stock. 

 Income, yields & Voids 

During the year the Manager focused on investment 
management activity to ensure that the Trust continues 
to deliver long term sustainable income returns for 
distribution to its investors. Very good progress was 
achieved in development and refurbishment activity to 
achieve higher sustainable rental levels. Some examples 
have been added in the activity section of the report.

The income of the fund remained resilient thanks to the 
good quality portfolio of assets and high covenant 
strength of its tenants. Letting activity and renewals 
remained strong, most particularly for the industrial 
assets where rental level increased at record rate. During 
the year the industrial sector delivered strong rental 
growth of 15.3% following very intense letting activity. 

Following the initial lifting of lockdown measures, the fund 
experienced improved levels of collections (noted later in 
this report). During the year the Manager maintained a 
distribution yield above the benchmark weighted average 
and at end of March 2022 was 3.2% compared to the 
benchmark of 2.9%. Having seen an increase in inflationary 
pressure, the portfolio remained pretty much resilient with 
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around 15% of the total rental income linked to index-
linked leases (RPI). The remaining leases are linked to 
open market reviews, where in the case of industrial sector 
reviews ran at record level increases. 

In terms of property yields, at the end of March 2022 the 
net initial yield was 3.8% and the reversionary yield was 
4.8%. The vacancy rate in the property portfolio was at 
11.7% of the total ERV. Around 6.7% is composed of 
planned voids where refurbishments or possible asset 
repositioning is being advanced and noted in the 
examples below. Most of the vacancy remains within the 
West End of London (5.1%) and South-East Office 
sectors (2.6%). The letting activity also reduced the voids 
in the industrial sector to 0.7% as at end of March 2022 
(compared to 2.0% in March 2021). 

The top three main void properties have been listed 
here below:

 A 8-10 Great George Street Westminster (Office) – 
during the year the Manager obtained full vacant 
possession of the building as part of the planned 
strategy. This will facilitate implementation of the 
valuable consents for alternative hotel and apartment 
uses previously secured by the Manager. There is 
significant investor and occupational interest in the 
asset, reflecting in particular the recovery of hospitality 
sector confidence following the easing of Covid-
related restrictions. A full marketing campaign has 
been undertaken and the Manager is  expecting this 
process to be fully concluded in the second half of 
2022. The current void has an estimated rental value of 
£3.2 million per annum and it accounts for 4.2% of the 
Trust’s void so a disposal of the asset would see the 
overall portfolio vacancy reduce significantly.

 A Hythe House Hammersmith (Office) – the Manager 
recently refurbished some of the units to a higher 
specification and has started to see an improved 
pick up in terms of letting activity (some noted in 
the activity examples). The void in the building has 
an estimated rental value of £1.0m per annum and it 
accounts for 1.3% of the overall vacancy rate. 

 A Round Foundry & Marshalls Mills, Leeds (Office) – 
over the last few years the Manager continued to work 
with local occupiers, mostly SMEs, to create a resilient 
place of work where occupiers can connect and create 
a community. Over the lockdown period the estate 
experienced some voids but also good letting activity. 
The major void contributing for around half the voids 
was the Round Foundry Media Centre where Leeds 
City Council vacated at the end of 2021. The Manager 
has been planning a sustainable refurbishment of the 
28,800 sq. ft. unit to bring it to as close as possible 
to a Net Zero status. The voids in the estate have an 
estimated rental value of £0.8 million per annum and 
they account for 1.1% of the portfolio void rate.

  Lease profiles and Risk 
Return Approach 

The Trust had an average unexpired lease term of 
5.8 years (to expiry/first break) compared to the 
benchmark of 6.6 years. The exposure to leases less 
than 5 years has been a particular point of focus for 
the Manager to assess the opportunities and risks of 
implementing initiatives to facilitate a Net Zero 
portfolio. Specifically, the Manager has been working 
closely with its appointed Net Zero consultant to 
prioritise and evaluate those assets with imminent lease 
expiries that provide the natural ‘intervention points’ to 
implement decarbonisation initiatives. Most of the 
expiries/breaks over the next few years come from the 
office and industrial sectors. The industrial sector 
provides the opportunity to pick up some strong rental 
uplifts from the letting activity, the office sector instead 
has been a major of focus for the structural changes 
affecting the sector. The results will provide a good 
understanding on the ability to scale across other 
assets in the portfolio. The Trust’s portfolio continues 
to have a strategic higher exposure to assets in 
London, the South East and Eastern regions where 
economic growth, property performance and liquidity 
is expected to be stronger than the rest of the UK in 
the short to medium-term. The Trust currently holds 
80.5% of assets by capital value located in London, the 
South East and Eastern compared with 66.2% in the 
Trust’s benchmark. The Manager currently remains 
comfortable with this bias whilst recognising the 
growth potential of some of the UK’s other major 
regional cities. 

The Trust continues to maintain a good balance of risk 
and return within its portfolio. The Manager also 
remains comfortable with the current exposure to assets 
within the ‘Special Situations’ and ‘Added Value’ risk/
return category. The Trust held 11% of its portfolio in 
special situation investments with an increased tilt 
towards the ‘Core’ and ‘Added Value’ strategies sitting 
respectively at 70% and 19% of the portfolio.

 Tenant Administrations and CVAs 

As part of the strategy for monitoring tenant risk within 
the portfolio, the rental income affected by tenancy 
administrations, liquidation or CVAs remained limited at 
2.6% of the total portfolio ERV as at end of March 2022. 
Over the last few months there were few company 
liquidations in the tenant portfolio from the office and 
industrial sectors. Most of the exposure remains in the 
retail sector and the lifting of the Moratorium as at end 
of March 2022 will potentially uncover some new cases 
of financial distress. However, the Trust’s income 
remains secured against a well-diversified portfolio of 
high quality properties which are generally let to good 
tenant covenants on relatively long lease terms.
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 Rent Collections and Arrears

Since the start of the pandemic the focus has been to 
engage with tenants to find a potential solution to 
situations of financial distress. During the year to March 
2022, the rent and service charge statistics continued to 
show much-improved trends on a quarterly basis. The 
Manager focused diligently on reaching repayment 
agreements on rent arrears with tenants in financial 
distress and managed to obtain positive outcomes. 
Repayment plans were agreed with some major tenants 
specifically in the hospitality and retail sectors which also 
reinstated quarterly rent payments. The most recent 
quarterly collections statistics for December 2021 
showed rent at 97% of the total demanded and service 
charge at 94%. The Manager continues to focus on the 
outstanding arrears to ensure a diligent recovery and, 
over the year enhanced its robust process of regular and 
detailed review of the bad debt provisions in the 
portfolio. The whole process has been driven by the 
finance and investment teams in conjunction with the 
property managers. 

 Outlook 

The UK economy had fully recovered its Covid-related 
losses at the beginning of 2022, just when a new shock 
from the Russian invasion of Ukraine hit. The war has had 
a significant negative impact on the UK and globally, 
acting as a potential stagflationary threat to the 
economy. The further increase in commodity prices due 
to the war came on top of an ongoing inflationary wave 
that has largely reflected pandemic-related supply/
demand imbalances and surging energy prices. Given 

this, the drag on domestic demand from high inflation 
and fiscal tightening will intensify further in the second 
quarter of 2022 and UK GDP growth is likely to slow 
down over the course of the year. 

Longer-term, the UK economy faces some prominent 
challenges. Efforts to rewire the economy for a post-
Brexit and net-zero world will define the next decade, 
while low productivity and regional and social 
inequalities will also need to be addressed. As ever, 
change implies risks. But this environment is also likely 
to offer investors plenty of opportunities.

With this background, during the year UK commercial real 
estate market delivered one of the highest performance 
results seen in decades. Industrials remained in strong 
demand from investors and most recently it was followed 
by the retail warehouse sector. The sub-sector trends 
remained polarised, having seen the recently lifted Covid 
restrictions accelerate the structural changes in relation to 
occupier and investor demands. 

The Manager will continue to focus on delivering long 
term, sustainable returns to the Trust’s investors, whilst 
recognising the economic challenges and uncertainties 
that currently prevail. These will present both risks and 
opportunities for the Trust in the near term. The strategy 
will remain consistent in actively managing the portfolio 
to optimise allocations through accretive sales and 
purchasing activity and intensively driving performance 
at the asset level to maximise income and capital 
growth. The proactive integration of ESG related factors 
and, specifically, achieving Net Zero on the portfolio, is a 
critical focus for this strategy.

FHPUT capital growth by sub-sector (Standing Investments) 
12 Months to 25 March 2022

-10% -5% 0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35% 40%

Shopping Centres

RUK Of�ces

Retail Units

Other

Central London Of�ces

Retail Warehouses

Industrial

All Property

21.6

-9.8

38.1

-2.8

2.7

3.6

1.8

16.1

Source: MSCI Real Estate. Note: Standing Investments Only: Capital growth excludes contributions from assets purchased or sold during the year.
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Investment Management 
Activity

conjunction with a local primary school, rewilding has 
started on the grass banks which surround the service 
yards (which are used to minimize noise during 
operations) together with four beehives being added 
and bird boxes/bug hotels installed. 

Templars Shopping Park, Oxford: 

In July 2021 the Manager completed a Unilateral 
Undertaking with Oxford City Council allowing the use 
of the current 22,475 sq. ft. Matalan unit as a 
supermarket. The Manager has simultaneously 
completed an Agreement for Lease with Lidl at an 
estimated annual rent of £450,000 p.a. for a 15 year term, 
including a break at the 10th anniversary. With the letting 
to Lidl, around 30% of the rental income of the asset will 
be driven by the supermarket/grocery category.

Unit Shops
North End, Croydon: 

Over the last few months the Manager completed 
lettings and renewals in the block. Tesco took over the 
vacant 5,425 sq. ft. unit in the retail parade. The lease is 
based on a 15-year terms with a break at the 10th 
anniversary at an annual rent passing of £120,000 after 
incentives (CPI rent reviews at 1% collar and 4% cap). The 
letting will secure an improvement to the WAULT of the 
assets and maximize its rental income. During the year 
the Manager also completed the lease renewal with 
another major occupier in the retail parade (Pandora). 
The lease completed for a 5-year term with break at year 
3 and delivering an average annual rent of £66,000.

Church Street, Cardiff: 

Following the comprehensive refurbishment of this city 
centre retail parade the Manager recently completed 
the letting of the final vacant unit to Rosa’s London Ltd 
for a 15-year term at a rent of £60,000 per annum after 
incentives. The asset is now fully let and provides a total 
rental income of £497,000 per annum. 

Broken Wharf House, London: 
During the year the Manager agreed with the serviced 
apartment operator (Edyn SACO) a payment plan for the 
full rent arrears following practical completion of the 
development. The operator opened trading at Broken 
Wharf House in 2020 and it has been recently rated as 
one of the top rising apart-hotels in Central London. The 
lease to SACO provides a base rent of £2,000,000 per 
annum to the Trust together with a potential turnover 
rent element. The Trust reserves an option to convert 
the lease to a management agreement after five years.

Retail Warehouses

12 Brighton Road, Redhill: 

The Manager completed an agreement for lease with 
B&Q on the 9,800 sq. ft. vacant unit on the estate for 10 
years at £221,918 p.a. (£22.50 per sq. ft.). The deal will 
require approximately £200,000 of works by the Fund. 
The agreement for lease is conditional on planning 
consent for bulky goods use (now obtained), minor 
works to the unit and car parking and the provision of 
two EVCP’s (Electrical Vehicle Charging Point). 

Maybird Shopping Park, Stratford upon Avon:  
The Manager agreed a three-year renewal with Next at 
£180,000 p.a. This keeps a key tenant on the park as the 
sector recovers from the impact of Covid-19 on 
shopping habits and retailer profitability. The Manager 
also agreed a variation to the Pizza Hut lease, taking 
them off CVA terms and onto a 10-year lease at £100,000 
p.a., £11,000 p.a. over valuation. As part of the ongoing 
ESG portfolio initiatives on biodiversity and in 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

TR
U

ST M
A

N
A

G
E

R
’S R

E
P

O
R

T
G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
FIN

A
N

C
IA

L STA
T

E
M

E
N

T
S

IN
V

E
ST

O
R

 IN
FO

R
M

A
T

IO
N

Annual Financial Statements 2022 15



Church Street, Caversham: 

During the year the Manager completed the lease 
renewal with Waitrose occupying a 40,000 sq. ft. unit in 
the shopping centre. The new lease completed for a 10-
year term at an annual rent passing of £500,000. The 
lease includes a fixed rent review uplift at year 5 to 
£565,704 which will be set until the end of the lease 
(equivalent to 2.5% p. a. compounded). 

Industrials

Thomas Road, Limehouse, London: 

Over the last year the estate experienced strong demand 
from grocery/supermarket delivery occupiers thanks to its 
strategic location. The Manager completed several 
lettings and renewals in the estate accounting for 53,462 
sq. ft of space (71% of the total area) at a combined total 
estimated rental value of £1,065,500 p.a. The letting 
activity also delivered a positive rental growth in the 
estate during the year.

Centrus Industrial Estate, Hertford: 

Positive letting activity during the year recording an 
improved rental tone across the estate. The Manager 
completed the lettings of two vacant units on the Estate. 
Unit 6 comprising 14,277 sq. ft was let to Sofa Club 
Limited for a 10-year lease at £156,965 p.a. (£10.99 per 
sq. ft.) after incentives. Unit 12 was let to Future Motors 
Limited for a 10-year lease at £86,457 p.a. (£10.50 per sq. 
ft) after incentives.

M2 City Link, Rochester: 

In October 2021 the development reached practical 
completion and simultaneously several lettings were 
completed at a lease length ranging 10-15 years. The 
remaining units are currently pre-let/under offer. The 
estate at a fully let position would secure an estimated 
rental income of £1.4m per annum (based on March 
2022 ERV). The development process followed the 
internal ESG guidelines for development/refurbishment. 
As part of the transaction, the Manager installed ECVPs 
(Electrical Vehicle Charging Points) in a number of 
parking spaces. Of the total floorspace, the Manager has 
now let/pre-let 87%.

Erdington Industrial Park, Birmingham: 

As part of the ongoing business plan to maximize the 
asset’s potential, the Manager submitted a planning 
application for a new 100,000 sq. ft of logistics space on 
the former car park (6 acres). The site is currently being 
temporary let to Stagecoach Services Ltd as main service 
space for the Commonwealth games in Birmingham 
(ERV £480,000 pa based on the latest March 2022 
valuation). The Manager completed the letting of Unit 
16/17 which comprises 30,993 sq. ft to ADI Automotive 
Services Ltd for a 5-year term at £162,500 p.a. (£5.25 per 
sq. ft) after incentives. 

Luton, Park Avenue Industrial Estate: 

The Manager completed the lettings of two vacant sites/
units in the estate: a six year lease to F&R Cawley Ltd at 
£76,300 p.a. (£2 per sq. ft.) after incentives to take over 
a 35,500 sq. ft site; and a new letting of a small newly 
refurbished unit for a five year term at £10.27 per sq. ft. 
The industrial estate is now fully let.

Guinness Road Trading Estate, Manchester: 

Letting to the University of Manchester for a term of 10 
years for £82,280 pa / £8.25 psf. The unit was 
comprehensively refurbished with new LED lighting, 
electric panel heaters and solar roof mounted array 
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and achieved an EPC of ‘A’. The tenant agreed to 
enter into a power purchase agreement with the 
Manager and it is anticipated that the system will 
produce 23,625 kWh of electricity and remove 
11,104 kg of carbon emissions per annum. The 
Manager had other positive letting activity during the 
year achieving strong rental growth. Unit 2 (21,048 sq. 
ft) and Unit 8 (10,845 sq. ft) were both renewed for a 
term of 10 years and 5 years at £6.05 per sq. ft and 
£7.00 per sq. ft, respectively. Unit 20 comprising 
6,790 sq. ft was a let on a new lease to Kindred Fires 
Limited for term of 10 years at £7.25 per sq. ft. 

Westgate Industrial Estate, Bedfont: 

The Manager has agreed a rent review with effect from 
February 2021 on Unit 1, which is let to Bridgestone 
Aircraft Limited, at £390,000 p.a. (£14.00 per sq. ft).

Fairway Trading Estate, Heathrow:

The Manager completed a lease renewal with Xpo 
Transport Solutions UK Ltd (a 38,400 sq. ft. unit) for a 
new 5-year lease at rent of £499,187 per annum (£13 per 
sq. ft.). This is reflecting a strong rental uplift from the 
previous rent (£9.47 per sq. ft.) and was above ERV.

Nexus Park, Newbury:

New letting of a vacant unit (12,720 sq. ft.) completed to 
an existing tenant in the estate (PSL Technology Group 
Ltd) occupying the adjacent unit. The lease completed 
at a 10-year term with a break at year 5 at an annual rent 
of £133,560 (£10.50 per sq. ft.). The Manager also agreed 
a rent review with Power and Energy International Ltd at 
a rent of £705,250 per annum (£6.43 per sq. ft.) reflecting 
a good uplift from the previous rent (6.00 per sq. ft. and 
£660,000 per annum).

Coln Industrial Estate, Heathrow: 

New 5-year leases completed to Gibbs Transport Ltd for 
a total area of 25,100 sq. ft. (3 units) at a total annual rent 
of £332,615 (£13.25 per sq. ft.). 

Reading Metropolitan: 

Achieved an initial confirmation from Reading Borough 
Council with a minded to grant outline planning consent 
for circa 620 residential units together with ancillary 
space and some commercial uses on this site. The 
decision is conditioned by the agreement of a 
comprehensive S106 and detailed design principles 
which will be worked up in the coming months.

Offices
18/20, St John Street, London, EC1: 

Following the recent complete building refurbishment 
(undertaken in line with the Federated Hermes’ 
Responsible Property Development guidelines), the 
Manager completed a new 5 year letting to Ellis Brown 
Commercial at a rent of £77,350 p. a. after incentives (3rd 
floor, 1,091 sq. ft. area – £70 per sq. ft.).

Plantation Wharf, York Place, Battersea:

During the year the Manager completed a number of 
lettings that reduced the overall void rate of the estate. 
In detail, at Ivory House a letting was agreed with 
Limitless Internet Solutions Ltd on a 10 year lease at 
£70,875 p. a. (£37.50 per sq. ft.) after incentives. At Reef 
House, a recent refurbishment of grade A office space, 
the Manager agreed a letting with Girraphic Park Ltd for 
a 2 year deal at £26,680 p. a. (£40 per sq. ft.); at Spice 
Court the Manager completed 3 lettings (2-3year terms) 
for a total rental income of £74,962 p.a. after incentives 
(averaging £35 per sq. ft.).

One City Place, Chester:

In September 2021 the Manager completed a new 
letting to Oxberry Bank plc to take over a 5,952 sq. ft. 
unit in the building for a 5 year term at rental income of 
£117,488 p. a. The lease includes a break option at year 
3. The BREEAM ‘Excellent’ ‘Grade A’ office building is 
adjacent to the Chester Mainline station. . The office 
building remains fully let delivering a WAULT to first 
break/expiry of 5.1 years. 

31, Great George Street, Bristol:

Following the refurbishment of the vacant 6th floor, the 
Manager completed the letting of the unit to Sanderson 
Solutions Group at an annual rent of £135,850 (£32.50 
per sq. ft.) for a 10-year period. The lease agreement 
includes a break option at year 5 and rent-free incentives 
to the tenant. The building remains fully let.

Hythe House, Hammersmith:

The office building carries some vacant refurbished units 
which are currently being marketed. Over the last 6 
months to March 2022, the Manager picked up on 
improvement in letting activity and completed a lease 
on the vacant 3rd floor unit to William A Bong Ltd for a 
4-year lease term at £102,735 per annum after incentives. 
The rent reflects £45 per sq. ft and the lease includes a 
break option at year 2. Following that, in Q1 2022 the 
Manager completed a new letting on the vacant 4th 
floor unit to ADM Promotions UK Ltd for a 10-year lease 
term at £206,280 per annum after incentives. The rent 
reflects £45 per sq. ft and the lease includes a break 
option on year 3 and 5. 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

TR
U

ST M
A

N
A

G
E

R
’S R

E
P

O
R

T
G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
FIN

A
N

C
IA

L STA
T

E
M

E
N

T
S

IN
V

E
ST

O
R

 IN
FO

R
M

A
T

IO
N

Annual Financial Statements 2022 17



Trust Manager’s Report

Sector weighting (%) – gross value basis
As at 25 March 2022

Unit Shops/
Supermarkets

Shopping
Centres

Retail
Warehouses

City
Of�ces

West End
Of�ces

South East
Of�ces

Rest of UK
Of�ces

Industrial Leisure/
Other

Cash

FHPUT MSCI/AREF UK Other Balanced Property Fund Index
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4.8 3.6
7.3 7.9 7.3

9.3
6.5 5.3

41.0 41.0

10.1 10.4

2.6
4.3

Source: MSCI/AREF UK Quarterly Property Funds Indices.

Core/Satellite approach to deliver optimum risk/return

Strategy & Medium Term Target Weighting

Actual Weighting 
to 25 March 

2022

Target 
outperformance 
vs benchmark

Core Strategies – 65% Income returns to underpin 
distribution yield 69.7% 0.5%

Added Value – 25% Exploit value enhancing 
opportunities 19.5% 1.0%

Special Situation Strategies – 10%
Higher risk Higher return 
Non-core sectors 
Specialist assets

10.8% 2.0%

Target outperformance per annum over a three year rolling period. 
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Direct Property Portfolio
The Trust has a portfolio bias to London and the South East with 80% of 
investment held in these regions. This is expected to be beneficial for the 
future performance of the Trust. A full list of properties and locations can 
be found in the Property Listing on pages 20-23.

n Industrials
n Offices
n Shopping Centres
n Unit Shops/Supermarkets
n Retail Warehouses
n Leisure/Other

North 8.3%

Industrials 3.4%

Offices 4.9%

Shopping Centres –

Unit Shops/Supermarkets –

Retail Warehouses _

Leisure/Other _

Central London 16.7%

Industrials –

Offices 12.4%

Shopping Centres –

Unit Shops/Supermarkets –

Retail Warehouses –

Leisure/Other 4.3%

North East 2.3%

Industrials –

Offices –

Shopping Centres –

Unit Shops/Supermarkets –

Retail Warehouses 2.3%

Leisure/Other –

South East (excl. London) 63.7%

Industrials 36.6%

Offices 7.5%

Shopping Centres 1.0%

Unit Shops/Supermarkets 6.5%

Retail Warehouses 6.3%

Leisure/Other 5.8%

West 6.9%

Industrials 2.0%

Offices –

Shopping Centres –

Unit Shops/Supermarkets 0.4%

Retail Warehouses 4.5%

Leisure/Other –

South West 2.0%

Industrials –

Offices 1.7%

Shopping Centres –

Unit Shops/Supermarkets –

Retail Warehouses –

Leisure/Other 0.3%

6.9%

16.7%

2.0%

63.7%

8.3%
2.0%
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Property Portfolio
Sector Property Principal Tenants

£30 million & over
Industrial 1/15 Thomas Road, Limehouse, London E14 7BN

Multi-let Greater London industrial estate with good short to medium-term 
rental prospects

Cherryz Ltd
The Felix Project 
Vorboss Limited

Coln Industrial Estate Old Bath Road
Freehold multi-let industrial estate

Gibbs Transport Ltd
Jump Giants Heathrow Ltd
Mark 3 International Ltd

Erdington Industrial Park, Chester Road, Erdington, Birmingham, B24 0RD
Freehold multi-let industrial estate

FGF Ltd 
Leacy MG Limited 
Stagecoach Services Ltd

Fairway Trading Estate, Green Lane, Heathrow
Freehold multi-let industrial estate

Fara Foundation
Steelo Ltd
Xpo Transport Solutions UK Ltd

Guinness Road Trading Estate, Manchester
Substantial multi-let industrial estate comprising 22 units, totalling 235,000 
sq.ft. providing a good range of small to medium size units

Jex Process Services Limited
KBF Enterprises Ltd
MW Insulation Limited

Horndon Industrial Park,West Horndon,CM13 3XL
Multi-let industrial park offering quick access to central London

Routebuy Ltd
The Steel Team Ltd
Xpand Logistics Ltd

LGC Complex, Newmarket Road, Fordham CB7 5WW
Freehold industrial and office estate located to the south of Fordham in an 
area which has established itself as an industrial and distribution hub

LGC Bioresearch Ltd

Mitcham Road, Croydon
A modern industrial estate of approximately 88,000 sq. ft. comprising five units

Benchmarx Kitchens and Joinery 
Ltd
City Plumbing Supplies Holdings 
Ltd
Selco Trade Centres Limited

Nexus Park, Hambridge Road, Newbury RG14 5TR
Freehold multi-let industrial estate

Power and Energy International 
Ltd
Specialist Auctions Ltd
Ward Thomas Removals Ltd

Peterwood Park, Beddington Farm Road, Croydon
A modern freehold industrial estate of five units, ranging in size from 9,000-
23,000 sq. ft.

Day Lewis Plc
Vodafone Limited

Polar Park, Bath Road, Heathrow
Leasehold multi-let industrial estate 

Circle Express Ltd
DHL Global Match (UK) Ltd
EE Ltd and Hutchinson 3G UK Ltd

Reading Metropolitan, 80 Caversham Road, Reading
Property occupying a five acre site situated immediately to the north of 
Reading station – development opportunity

Vacant site – development 
opportunity
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Sector Property Principal Tenants

Office 27 Soho Square, London W1D 3QR
Freehold property comprising 32,000 sq. ft. of office accommodation

Barclays Bank plc 
John Ayling & Associates Ltd
Muse Developments Limited

8-10 Great George Street, London SW1P 3AE
Freehold West End office building comprising 53,000 sq. ft.

Boundary House, 91/93 Charterhouse St, London EC1
Freehold office property in Clerkenwell. The property comprises 32,700 sq. ft. 
over basement, ground and six upper floors, used as office space on upper 
floors and retail units on the ground floor including Gaucho Grill

Hi Bob (UK) Ltd
Innisfree Ltd 
Stone King LLP

Hythe House, Hammersmith
Freehold, multi-let modern office building over 56,280 sq. ft. located in 
Hammersmith

Elizabeth Finn Care
Siemens PLC
Sumitomo Chemical (UK) Plc

Round Foundry & Marshalls Mill, Water Lane, Holbeck Urban Village, 
Leeds LS11
Former mill and foundry buildings dating from 1791 and 1795, converted 
to offices, restaurant and residential in 1990’s. Multi-let, mixed use freehold 
property comprising 155,811 sq. ft.

Born Ugly Ltd
True North Productions Limited
Welcome to Yorkshire

Other Broken Wharf House, High Timber Street, London EC4
Serviced apartment investment conversion located on the north bank of 
the Thames

Edyn Ltd (SACO)

Enterprise Portfolio 1
15 pubs across London

EI Group PLC

Retail Maybird Shopping Park, Stratford-upon-Avon
Freehold retail warehouse park of 232,000 sq. ft. with open A1 
planning consent

Asda Stores Ltd
B&Q Ltd
Matalan Retail Ltd

Sainsbury’s, Maxwell Road, Beaconsfield
Foodstore with a long lease

Sainsbury’s Supermarket Ltd

Templars Shopping Park, Cowley, Oxford
Prime retail warehouse park, well located on a very prominent site 2.5 miles 
east of Oxford city centre. The site totals 8.87 acres comprising 14 units 
totalling 138,588 sq ft GIA and 467 car parking spaces

Asda Stores Ltd
Sainsbury’s Supermarket Ltd
TJK UK

M2 City Link, Anthony’s Way, Rochester, ME2 4DW
Forward funding development – prime industrial estate comprising 3 logistics 
units and 5 trade counter/industrial units totalling 132,425 sq. ft GIA

Bathroom Plumbing Superstore 
Ltd
Argos
Selco Trade Centres Ltd
Wurth UK Ltd
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Sector Property Principal Tenants

£10 – £30 million
Industrial Centrus Industrial Estate, Mead Lane, Hertford

Freehold multi-let industrial estate which includes a range of modern industrial 
units in Hertford’s well established central business location

Future Motors Ltd
Power Valves International Ltd

Eagle Park Warrington, Eagle Park Drive, Warrington, WA2 8JA
Freehold multi-let industrial estate

Master Removers Group Ltd
Primeline Logistics Ltd
Relay Technical Transport Ltd

Park Avenue Industrial Estate, Park Avenue, Sundon Park, Luton LU3 3BP
Freehold multi-let industrial estate

Academy Foodservice Ltd
Carpet Accessory Trims Ltd 
Special Wear UK Ltd

Westgate Industrial Estate, Bedfont
Two refurbished industrial units, close to Heathrow airport, comprising over  
40,000 sq.ft.

Bridgestone Aircraft Tyre (UK) Ltd 
ByBox Field Support Ltd

Office 1/7 Sekforde Street, London EC1R 0BE
25,000 sq.ft. freehold office building which is currently occupied as serviced 
offices, situated in Clerkenwell. 

Future Cities Catapult Ltd

31 Great George Street, Bristol BS1 5QD
Well configured office building located in Clifton

Jones Lang LaSalle Limited
Sanderson Solutions Group Plc
University of Bristol

Citygate Court, Manchester
Freehold 47,000 sq.ft. city centre office investment. Occupied as offices with 
ground floor banking hall, purchased in September 2011

Barclays Bank plc 
The Secretary of State 
for Communities & Local 
Government

Commercial Point, 69-81 Commercial Road, Southampton
67,000 sq. ft. freehold office building

Old Mutual Wealth Business 
Services Limited
SSE Services Plc

Park View House, Victoria Road South, Chelmsford
Freehold office investment located in an established South East location

Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance plc

Plantation Wharf, York Place, Battersea
Mixed-use leasehold office building located on a prime riverside site 
in Battersea

Elite Fine Wines Ltd
Stent Tek Ltd

Horizon Building, Honey Lane, Hurley, Maidenhead SL6 6RJ
Freehold multi-let office building

Leo Laboratories Ltd
Pfizer Ltd
Wireless Logic Ltd

One City Place, off Queens Road, Chester CH1 3BQ
Leasehold multi-let office building

Black and Veatch Limited
RSM UK Management / Baker Tilly 
Management Limited
Sykes Cottages Limited

Other Block E Greenwich, 48-55 Greenwich High Road, Greenwich SE10 8JL
A recently completed development of serviced apartments, a gym and vacant 
retail unit with a total floor area of 53,570 sq. ft.

Pure Gym Ltd
StayCity Greenwich Ltd

Enterprise Portfolio 2
9 pubs across SE/SW

EI Group PLC

Premier Inn, Greenwich
Freehold hotel property let on a long lease and situated close to Greenwich 
rail and DLR stations

Premier Inn Hotels Limited
Reefmark Ltd
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Sector Property Principal Tenants

Retail 51-53 T, Caversham
Food anchored retail asset in the South East let off low rents. Opportunities 
for extension and repositioning

Iceland Frozen Foods Plc
Waitrose Ltd

12 Brighton Road, Redhill
Small freehold retail warehouse constructed in 1993 totalling 31,400 sq. ft.

B&Q
Halfords Ltd 
Pets At Home Ltd

Christopher Place, St Albans
85,000 sq.ft. freehold shopping centre situated in an affluent part of the 
South East

Azzuri (assigned from Zizzi 
Restaurants Ltd)
Fitness First Clubs Ltd

Homelands, Chelmsford (Tower Hill LP)
Freehold retail warehouse scheme of circa 100,000 sq. ft, jointly owned in 
a limited partnership with BT Pension Scheme

B&Q PLC
EDF Energy Plc
Longacre Garden Centres Ltd

Hurricane Way, Clifton Moor, York
Freehold retail warehouse constructed in 1992 with garden centre totalling 
approximately 51,900 sq.ft.

B&Q PLC

The Broadway, Wimbledon, London SW19
Freehold, constructed in 2000, retail terrace of six units over ground, first and 
second floors together with a public house to the rear. Approximate area 
49,600 sq. ft.

JD Sports Fashion Plc 
Ryman Ltd
The Feel Good Group Limited

71-89 North End Road, Croydon
Parade of freehold unit shops (24,000 sq. ft.) in a prime position between the 
principal entrances to the Whitgift and Centrale shopping centres

EE Ltd
Luxury Leisure
Sportswift Ltd
Vision Express (UK) Ltd

B&Q, Hull Road, York
Purpose-built B&Q warehouse providing a total of 102,360 sq. ft GIA

B&Q Plc
Northern Electric plc

Under £10 million
Retail 5/9 & 10 Church Street, Cardiff

Five freehold restaurant units recently refurbished and located on a 
pedestrianised street in the city centre of Cardiff

Mowgli Street Food Ltd
New World Trading (UK) Ltd The 
Botanist 
Pho Trading Ltd

St Albans Retail Park II, St Albans (Tower Hill LP) 
Freehold retail warehouse scheme of 60,000 sq. ft. let to CDS trading as 
The Range. Jointly owned in a limited partnership with BT Pension Scheme

CDS (Superstores International) 
Ltd

St Albans Retail Park I, St Albans (Tower Hill Retail LP) 
Freehold retail warehouse scheme of 62,560 sq.ft., let to a variety of tenants 
jointly owned in a limited partnership with BT Pension Scheme

Pure Gym Limited 
Matalan Retail Ltd 
Pets At Home Ltd

Office 18/20, St John Street, London EC1M 4AY
Freehold office building which adjoins another FHPUT holding, 
Boundary House – under refurbishment

Ellis Brown Commercial Ltd

Wellington Gate, Church Road, Tunbridge Wells
Refurbished freehold office accommodation over seven floors, totalling  
28,000 sq. ft.

Coutts and Co
EPG Communications Holdings 
Limited
Hobson Prior International Ltd
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Responsible Property 
Investment Strategy
The Trust Manager takes a proactive approach to the 
ESG strategy and implementation with the core principle 
that ESG is integrated through all decision making.

Net Zero Pathway  
The Federated Hermes Net Zero Pathway was 
published in December 2020 with a target date of 2035 
for all managed assets in the UK. The Manager 
appointed a Principal Contractor to help with the 
implementation of this pathway and the contractor has 
now analysed the fund’s portfolio to identify asset level 
opportunities to ensure that ESG is considered in all 
decision making across the portfolio.  

Net Zero Implementation 
The Manager has developed a Net Zero Implementation 
Guide aiming to support the Trust’s decarbonisation plan. 
The document outlines the steps that needs to be 
followed to ensure that all the opportunities for Net Zero 
are being taken and utilised impactfully. The 
development and refurbishment phases are therefore 
crucial stages in an asset’s life cycle where opportunities 
can be realised. The Manager has developed two 
standards to meet this objective: The Design Innovation 
Standard and the Responsible Property Management 
Standard. The Guide also covers ESG and Net Zero 
considerations for acquisition, disposal and management.  

Design Innovation Standard (DIS) 
The Design Innovation Standard (DIS) was introduced 
last year and has been used successfully in all major 
development projects to align with Net Zero and ESG. 
It has been used to develop the design brief for 
Commercial Point, Southhampton.  

Responsible Property Management Standard 
(RPMS) 
The existing Responsible Property Development (RPD) 
Guidelines for refurbishment were also updated last year to 
include key ESG considerations into property management 
and refurbishment projects. The objective is to capture the 
environmental improvements and opportunities in the 
investment life cycle of an asset. This has also been 
successfully used across the portfolio over the last year and 
ensures that maintenance and management requirements 
are properly considered given the importance that design 
can have on future investment value.  

Energy Performance Certificates
The Minimum Energy Efficiency Standards require that 
all properties have an Energy Performance Certificate 
(EPC) rating of E or above by April 2023, including those 
subject to an existing tenancy. It is possible to apply for 
exemptions but the Trust Manager has been working 
towards ensuring these requirements are met for some 
time. This pre planning means that there are only four 
tenanted and four untenanted properties with EPCs that 
do not meet this requirement and a plan for remediation 
is in place for all of these.

GRESB  
The Manager has been preparing the GRESB submission 
for 2022 focusing on improving the data coverage. In the 
2021 survey, the Trust was awarded three Green Stars in 
recognition of the Trust’s ongoing application of 
responsible property investment activities within the 
context of delivering good commercial returns to unit 
holders. Specifically, in 2021 FHPUT scored 75/100, and 
ranked 13th out of 79 funds in the UK Diversified/Non-
Listed Peer Comparison Group by GRESB. 

BREEAM In Use (BIU) 
The fund now has 10 certified properties within its 
portfolio, resulting in a 13.9% coverage by number of 
assets in FHPUT under the scheme. Under the BIU 
rating scheme, assets need to be re-certified every 
three years. The re-certification of the 8-10 Great 
George Street asset in London, which was due last year, 
had not been completed due to Covid-19. The Manager 
is in the process of certifying the assets which are due 
for re-certification.  

Flood Resilience Planning  
Over the last few years, the Manager has been working 
to implement robust flood resilience planning in 
addition to standard risk assessment and planning. The 
Manager has mapped all the assets for flood risk, by 
completing flood resilience reports that detail 
protection plans, mitigation strategies, risk matrices, 
flood-level establishment and exceedance analysis, 
review of local flood defences alongside evacuation 
trigger levels and operational protocols. 
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Responsibilities and 
Governance
Appointments Committee

The Appointments Committee is 
appointed to act on behalf of Unit 
Holders – it is responsible for the 
appointment and removal of the Trust 
Manager, the Trustee, the independent 
auditors, each subject to ratification by 
Unit Holders, and the independent 
valuers, and the remuneration of both 
the Trust Manager and Trustee. 

The Appointments Committee is also required by the 
Trust Deed to approve the financial statements of the 
Trust at the end of each annual accounting period – such 
financial statements are considered by the Unit Holders 
annually at the Trust’s Annual General Meeting. The 
Appointments Committee has taken all reasonable steps 
to ensure compliance with its responsibilities. 

New members of the Appointments Committee are 
appointed by The Trust Manager in writing and 
approved by Unit Holders at the Trust’s Annual General 
Meeting; at least one third of the members are 
considered for re-election each year. The Appointments 
Committee met four times during the period.

Charles Maudsley was appointed to the Appointments 
Committee and the FHPUT Committee on 18 May 2021. 
He also joined the Audit Committee and the Asset Plan 
Committee during the period. Paul Clarke retired from 
the Appointments Committee and the FHPUT 
Committee on 14 July 2021.

The Appointments Committee is supported by the 
following two Committees: 

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee’s principal responsibilities include:

 A monitoring and reviewing the auditors’ independence 
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit 
process, and considering the appointment of the 
auditors; 

 A discussing and agreeing the scope of the audit and 
reviewing the auditors’ response to changes in the 
regulatory requirements; 

 A reviewing the unaudited interim financial statements 
and annual financial statements prior to submission 
to the Appointments Committee including advice on 
whether they are fair, balanced and understandable; 

 A discussing issues and management recommendations 
that arise with the external auditors; 

 A agreeing any non-audit services; and 

 A considering major findings from any controls reports 
produced by external or internal auditors. 

During this financial year, the Audit Committee’s  
actions included:

 A Discussing and agreeing the scope of the audit with 
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP; 

 A Reviewing the annual financial statements prior 
to submission to the Appointments Committee, 
including advice on whether they are fair, balanced 
and understandable; 

 A Discussing issues and management recommendations 
that arose with the external auditors; 

 A Considering the results of controls reports produced 
by the Manager;  

 A Considering additional disclosures required in the 
financial statements as a result of Covid-19; and 

 A Completing an audit tender review for the Trust and 
selecting a new audit firm to recommend to the 
Trust’s unit holders. 

As a result of this activity the Audit Committee were 
able to conclude that the unaudited interim financial 
statements and annual financial statements were fair, 
balanced and understandable. 

In accordance with best practice, the Audit Committee 
reviews the audit quality and independence on an 
annual basis. The Audit Committee considered the 
independence, objectivity and effectiveness of the 
Trust’s auditors and concluded that these have been 
satisfactorily demonstrated for the year ended 
25 March 2022. 

The members of the Audit Committee are Andrew 
McIntyre, who acts as Chairman, Francis Davies and 
Charles Maudsley.

The Trust Manager manages and 
administers the Trust in accordance 
with the Trust Deed and has 
responsibility for all portfolio and 
risk management matters.

The Appointments Committee 
approve the financial statements at 
the end of each annual accounting 
period before consideration by the 
Unit Holders at the Trust’s Annual 
General Meeting.
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Nominations Committee
The Nominations Committee meets as and when 
required and considers the appointment of new 
members. It is chaired by the Chairman of the 
Appointments Committee and its members are 
Sue Clayton and Andrew McIntyre. 

Trust Manager
The Trust Manager is required to manage and administer 
the Trust in accordance with the Trust Deed and has 
responsibility for all portfolio and risk management 
matters. It is responsible for the approval of amounts to 
be distributed and for the issuance of financial statements 
subject to approval by the Appointments Committee. 

In June 2013, the Trust Manager formed the FHPUT 
Committee through which it considers certain matters on 
behalf of Unit Holders including investment constraints. It 
comprises only the members of the Appointments 
Committee and met five times during the period. 

The FHPUT Committee is supported by the Asset Plan 
Committee. The Asset Plan Committee’s duties include 
the detailed review of the investment process and of the 
strategic property plans for each individual asset within 
the Trust’s portfolio. Its membership consists of Sue 
Clayton (Chairman) and Charles Maudsley. Paul Clark 
retired from and Charles Maudsley was appointed to the 
Asset Plan Committee during the period. The Asset Plan 
Committee met formally and informally on various 
occasions during the period. 

Statement of Trust Manager’s responsibilities 
in respect of the financial statements
The Trust Manager is responsible for preparing the non-
statutory Trust financial statements in accordance with 
United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice 
(United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 
102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the 
UK and Republic of Ireland”, and applicable law), and the 
Trust Deed. The Trust Manager must not approve non-
statutory financial statements unless they are satisfied that 
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
Trust and of the profit or loss of the Trust for that period. 
In preparing the non-statutory financial statements, the 
Trust Manager is responsible for:

 A selecting suitable accounting policies and then 
applying them consistently;

 A stating whether applicable United Kingdom 
Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102 have been 
followed, subject to any material departures disclosed 
and explained in the financial statements;

 A making judgements and accounting estimates that 
are reasonable and prudent; and

 A preparing the non-statutory financial statements on 
the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to 
presume that the Trust will continue in business.

The Trust Manager is responsible for safeguarding the 
assets of the Trust and hence for taking reasonable steps 
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other 
irregularities. The Trust Manager is also responsible for 
keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient 
to show and explain the Trust’s transactions and disclose 
with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial 
position of the Trust.

Trustee
The role of the Trustee includes:

 A ensuring that the Trust is managed by the Trust 
Manager in accordance with the Trust Deed and that 
proper accounting records have been maintained; 

 A safeguarding the property of the Trust and the 
rights attaching thereto by way of segregation and 
identification of assets; and 

 A taking all reasonable steps to ensure the investment 
and borrowing powers are complied with. 

Governance
The Appointments Committee and the Trust Manager 
are committed to a high standard of corporate 
governance in the operation of the Trust. 

Regulation and Legislation
The Trust Manager is responsible for dealing with its 
regulator, the Financial Conduct Authority, in an open 
and co-operative manner. The Trust Manager will inform 
the regulator promptly of anything concerning the Trust 
which might reasonably be expected to be disclosed. 

The Trust Manager is also responsible for ensuring that 
all applicable legislation and regulations including but 
not limited to the Alternative Investment Fund Managers 
Directive and the Bribery Act 2010 are complied with by 
the Trust. It is required to maintain adequate procedures 
that ensure compliance with such legislation and it 
monitors that such procedures are adhered to. 

Conflicts of Interest
The Appointments Committee and the Trust Manager 
will seek to avoid any conflict of interest arising. Should a 
conflict arise, they have a duty to ensure fair treatment of 
all Unit Holders.

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

T
R

U
ST

 M
A

N
A

G
E

R
’S R

E
P

O
R

T
G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
FIN

A
N

C
IA

L STA
T

E
M

E
N

T
S

IN
V

E
ST

O
R

 IN
FO

R
M

A
T

IO
N

Annual Financial Statements 2022 27



Appointments Committee

28 Federated Hermes Property Unit Trust

Appointments Committee Fees
The Appointments Committee is remunerated in respect of each accounting period an amount that will not exceed 
0.05% of the gross asset value of the Trust. The Chairman is paid £40,000 per annum and other members of the 
Appointments Committee are each paid £27,500 per annum. The members of the Appointments Committee are paid 
out of the assets of the Trust and receive no additional remuneration for their appointment on the FHPUT Committee.

David Nicol BA (Hons) CA – Chairman (Appointed 16 July 2012)
David is a Chartered Accountant and is Chairman and a Non-Executive Director of 
Multrees Investor Services Limited and an independent member of the Board for 
both Julius Baer Group Limited and Bank Julius Baer & Co Limited. David was Chief 
Executive of Brewin Dolphin plc from 2013 until mid-2020. He worked for Morgan 
Stanley from 1984 until 2010 taking various senior operational roles. He was chair of 
Morgan Stanley Pension Trustee Limited and non-executive chair of the audit 
committee of Morgan Stanley International until the end of 2011.

Sue Clayton BSc FRICS (Appointed 9 December 2014)
Sue was an Executive Director at CBRE, the global property advisers, where she has 
specialised in UK investment markets for over 25 years until her retirement in 2020. 
Sue is a Non-Executive Director of SEGRO Plc and of Helical Plc where she chairs 
the Valuation Committee and sits on the Audit and Remuneration Committees. 
She is Chair of the Barwood Property 2017 Fund and a Trustee of the Reading Real 
Estate Foundation.

Andrew McIntyre MA, ACA (Appointed 7 June 2017)
Andrew is the senior independent director of C. Hoare & Co., and a non-executive 
director of Lloyds Bank Corporate Markets plc, Ecclesiastical Insurance Group plc 
and Target Group Limited. He is a trustee of the Foundling Museum. Andrew was 
previously a board member and chairman of Southern Housing Group Limited. He was 
a partner at Ernst & Young for 28 years. 

Frances Davies MA, MPhil (Appointed 18 February 2019)
Frances has more than 30 years’ experience across various roles within the asset 
management and investment banking industries. Since 2007 she has been a partner 
of Opus Corporate Finance and she currently holds non-executive roles on the 
JP Morgan Smaller Companies Investment Trust Board, Aviva’s With-Profits 
Committee, the Aegon Investments Ltd Board and, the Board of HICL plc. 

Charles Maudsley FRICS (Appointed 18 May 2021)
Charles is a Chartered Surveyor and is Strategic Advisor to Bridgepoint LLP and 
Founder of Alma Real Estate Consultancy. From 2010-19 Charles was a Main Board 
Director at British Land plc with day to day responsibility for the Retail, Leisure and 
Residential portfolios. Prior to this Charles was Co Head of Europe for LaSalle 
Investment Management and also sat on the Global Board of the Investment 
Management business. This followed a role as UK head of Real Estate for AXA REIM. 
Charles started his career at DTZ where he ultimately held a position as Director in 
the Investment team. 
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Dermot Kiernan
Dermot has over 35 years extensive experience in the UK property sector. He joined 
Federated Hermes in October 2020 from M&G Real Estate, where he managed three 
UK focused property funds. Prior to this Dermot worked for LaSalle Investment 
Management, principally on UK pension fund mandates, a publicly listed property 
company and, initially, in the public sector. Dermot is a member of the Royal 
Institution of Chartered Surveyors and has a BSc in Estate Management from 
Southbank University. He is also a holder of the Investment Management Certificate 
and a member of the Investment Property Forum.

Kirsty Wilman
Kirsty Wilman is Executive Director – Business Management for Private Markets, 
responsible for coordinating all legal, compliance, finance and operational support for 
the Real Estate portfolio. She was previously Head of Operations for Private Markets 
and before that, Finance Director for Real Estate. Prior to joining Federated Hermes 
Real Estate, Kirsty was at Ernst and Young in Audit and Assurance working with Real 
Estate and Entrepreneurial clients. She qualified as a Chartered Accountant in 2005.

Clive Selman
Clive joined the International business of Federated Hermes in June 2012 and is 
responsible for promoting our diverse fund range to the UK discretionary and 
wholesale market, including global financial institutions. Clive previously worked 
at Man Investments, where he was responsible for distributing their hedge fund 
portfolios to a UK and European audience. Clive holds a BA (Hons) in Business 
Studies and German from the University of Sheffield.



Trustee and Depositary 
NatWest Trustee and Depositary Services Limited  
250 Bishopsgate, London EC2M 4AA 
Registered in England no. 11194605

Trustee enquiries should be made to: 
NatWest Trustee and Depositary Services Limited  
250 Bishopsgate, London EC2M 4AA

Authorised and regulated by the Financial 
Conduct Authority.

Real Estate Investment Manager
Hermes Real Estate Investment Management Limited 
150 Cheapside, London EC2V 6ET

Trust Manager
Hermes Alternative Investment Management Limited 
150 Cheapside, London EC2V 6ET

Authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct 
Authority. The Trust Manager delegates certain property 
activities to Hermes Real Estate Investment Management 
Limited (the Real Estate Investment Manager).

Independent Valuers
Knight Frank LLP  
55 Baker Street, London W1U 8AN

Banker
The Royal Bank of Scotland plc 
Financial Institutions Corporate Service Team  
Aldgate Union, 10 Whitechapel High Street London E1 8DX

Trust Legal Advisors
Bryan Cave Leighton Paisner LLP  
Adelaide House, London Bridge, London EC4R 9HA

Independent Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP  
7 More London Riverside, London SE1 2RT

Managing Agents
Jones Lang LaSalle  
40 Bank Street Canary Wharf, London E14 5EG

Workman & Partners  
Rivergate House, 70 Redcliff Street, Bristol BS1 6AL

Advisors
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Consolidated  
Statement of Total Return
For the year ended 25 March 2022

Notes
2022 

£’000
2021 

£’000

Net gain/(loss) on investments 2 216,450 (40,045)

Rental income 62,999 70,082

Service charge income 8,721 8,322

Property expenses 3 (23,441) (24,811)

Net property income 48,279 53,593

Management expenses 4 (2,296) (2,701)

Net operating income before interest, finance costs and taxation 45,983 50,892

Share of results of investment in joint venture 1,709 1,655

Interest income 5 10 51

Interest expense and similar charges 6 (848) (333)

Net income before tax 46,854 52,265

Taxation 7 – –

Net income after taxation 46,854 52,265

Total return for the year before distribution  263,304 12,220

Finance costs – distributions to unit holders 8 (47,210) (53,168)

Change in unit holders' funds attributable to unit holders 216,094 (40,948)

All activities derive from continuing operations.
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Consolidated  
Balance Sheet
As at 25 March 2022

Notes
2022 

£’000
2021 

£’000

Fixed assets

Property investments 9 1,450,780 1,223,040 

Investment in joint venture 10 28,644 21,914 

1,479,424 1,244,954 

Current assets 

Debtors 11 43,312 45,951

Cash and deposits 55,954 80,646 

Total current assets 99,266 126,597

Current liabilities

Creditors 12 (30,579) (31,077)

Amounts payable to unit holders 8 (11,506) (12,520)

Total current liabilities (42,085) (43,597)

Net current assets 57,181 83,000

Non current liabilities

Bank borrowings 13 (47,847) (47,824)

Net assets 1,488,758 1,280,130

Represented by:

Capital of unit holders

Units in issue 14 616,224 623,690 

Less: Capital expenses (50,358) (50,002)

565,866 573,688

Net realised profits on sales of property 474,985 474,995

Unrealised profit 447,907 231,447 

Unit holders' funds 1,488,758 1,280,130 

Capital employed 1,488,758 1,280,130 

These financial statements were approved by the Appointments Committee on 22 June 2022 and signed on its 
behalf by: 

David Nicol

Andrew McIntyre
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Consolidated Statement 
of Changes in Net Assets 
Attributable to Unit Holders
For the year ended 25 March 2022

Units in 
issue 

£’000

Capital 
expenses 

£’000

 Net 
realised 
profits 

on sale of 
property 

£’000

Unrealised 
profit 
£’000

Revenue 
reserve 

£’000
Net assets 

£’000

At 26 March 2020 729,870 (49,099) 398,952 347,535 – 1,427,258 

Profit for the year – – – – 12,220 12,220

Transfer to capital reserve – – 76,043 (116,088) 40,045 –

Capital expenses – (903) – – 903 –

Units redeemed (106,180) – – – – (106,180)

Distributions to unit holders – – – – (53,168) (53,168)

At 25 March 2021 623,690 (50,002) 474,995 231,447 – 1,280,130 

Profit for the year – – – – 263,304 263,304

Transfer to capital reserve - - (10) 216,460 (216,450) - 

Capital expenses - (356) - - 356 - 

Units redeemed (7,466) - - - - (7,466)

Distributions to unit holders - - - - (47,210) (47,210)

At 25 March 2022 616,224 (50,358) 474,985 447,907 – 1,488,758
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Consolidated Cash 
Flow Statement
For the year ended 25 March 2022

Notes
2022  

£’000
2021 

£’000

Net cash inflow from operating activities 16 49,388 36,635

Capital expenditure

Property acquisitions and capital additions (18,045) (88,623)

Capital expenses (356) (357)

Proceeds from sales of investments – 160,818 

(18,401) 71,838 

Returns on investments and servicing of finance

Interest receivable 5 10 51 

Distributions paid 8 (48,223) (52,638)

(48,213) (52,587)

Financing

Long term bank borrowing  13 – 47,824 

Units issued in the year  – –

Units redeemed in the year 14   (7,466) (106,180)

  (7,466) (58,356)

Decrease in cash and deposits (24,692) (2,470)

Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net funds

Decrease in available cash during the year (24,692) (2,470)

Decrease in net funds during the year (24,692) (2,470)

Opening cash and deposits attributable to unit holders 80,646 83,116

Closing cash and deposits attributable to unit holders  55,954 80,646
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Notes to the  
financial statements
For the year ended 25 March 2022

1. Accounting policies

 Basis of Accounting
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis in accordance with the historical cost 
convention as modified by the revaluation of investments and in accordance with applicable UK generally 
accepted accounting principles and the Trust Deed.

Having taken into account the risks and uncertainties, including the impact of Covid-19 that exist within the Real 
Estate industry, The Trust Manager has concluded that the Trust has sufficient financial resources to meet its 
obligations as they fall due and the Trust Manager is satisfied that at the time of approving the financial 
statements, it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

 Statement of Compliance 
The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with United Kingdom Accounting Standards, 
including Financial Reporting Standard 102, ‘‘The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United 
Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland’’ (‘‘FRS 102’’). 

 Basis of Consolidation 
The Trust holds certain property investments through joint ventures. Such investments are accounted for using 
the equity method, with the investment property in the joint venture measured at fair value. Investments held 
through subsidiary undertakings are fully consolidated in the financial statements. 

 Statement of Total Returns 
The Trust has no recognised gains and losses other than those included in the results above and therefore no 
separate statement of total gains and losses has been presented. 

 Investment Property 
Investment properties are initially recognised at cost and subsequently measured at fair value. The freehold and 
leasehold investment properties are valued on a monthly basis by the Trust’s independent valuers, Knight Frank 
LLP, on the basis of Market Value in accordance with RICS Appraisal and Valuation Standards. Any surplus or 
deficit arising on revaluation is included in Unrealised Profit in Unit holders’ funds.

Investments in Joint Ventures

Investments in joint ventures are initially recognised at the transaction price and are subsequently adjusted to 
reflect the share of the profit or loss, other comprehensive income and equity of the associate. Any surplus or 
deficit arising is included in Unrealised Profit in Unit holders’ funds. 
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1. Accounting policies (continued)

 Income and Expenditure
Rental income, service charge income, interest and expenditure are accounted for on an accruals basis. Rental income 
is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease even if payments are not made as such.

Incentives paid to enter into an operating lease are debited to the profit and loss account, to reduce the rental 
income, on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease. The Trust has taken advantage of the exemption in 
respect of lease incentives on leases in existence on the date of transition to FRS 102 (26 March 2014) and continues to 
debit such lease incentives to rental income over the period to the first review date on which the rent is adjusted to 
market rates. Lease incentives are recorded within debtors and a corresponding reduction is made to property 
valuations. 

Valuation fees and performance fees payable to the Real Estate Investment Manager are treated as capital expenses. 
They are reported within property expenses in the Consolidated Statement of Total Return but are not taken into 
account in determining the Trust’s distributable income, instead being taken to the Capital expenses reserve. The 
effect of this treatment is to increase income distributions and reduce the Trust’s Net Assets by the value of such 
expenses each year. Transaction costs are capitalised and reported as part of the net gain or loss on investments in 
the Consolidated Statement of Total Return.

Other than the interest receivable and interest payable and similar charges balances, there are no items of income, 
expense, gain or loss arising from the Trust’s financial instruments. 

 Distributions
It is the policy of the Trust to distribute all income net of expenses to the unit holders on a quarterly basis. In 
accordance with FRS 102, distributions have been classified as finance costs.

 Purchases and Sales of Investment Property
Property purchases are accounted for on exchange of unconditional contracts, otherwise on completion. Sales 
are accounted for on completion. 

 Cash and Deposits
Cash and deposits includes cash at bank, cash in hand and overnight deposits.

 Debtors
Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition they are 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. A provision for doubtful debts is made when 
collection of the full amount is no longer probable. Bad debts are written off when they are specifically identified. 

 Creditors
Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition they are 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

 Bank Borrowings
Interest bearing bank loans are recorded at proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Finance charges, 
including direct issue costs, are recognised on an accrual basis. Issue costs are amortised over the period to the 
date of expiry of the facility agreement. 

 Significant Accounting Estimates
The Trust’s key source of estimation relates to the valuation of the property portfolio where external valuations 
are obtained from the Trust’s independent valuers. Estimates are continually evaluated and are based on 
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be 
reasonable under the circumstances. There is no assurance that the estimates will reflect the actual sales price 
even where a sale occurs shortly after the valuation date.
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2. Net gain/(loss) on investments 
The net gain/(loss) during the period comprises:

2022 
£’000

2021 
£’000

Proceeds from sales of investments – 160,818 

Original cost of investments sold – (84,775)

Profit realised on investments sold – 76,043 

Revaluation loss recognised in earlier periods – (67,671)

(Loss)/gain for the year on investments sold (10) 8,372

Net unrealised gain/(loss) on revaluation of property investments 209,730 (46,519)

Net unrealised gain/(loss) on revaluation of investment in joint venture 6,730 (1,898)

Net gain/(loss) on investments 216,450 (40,045)

3. Property expenses

Notes
2022 

£’000
2021 

£’000

Trust Manager fees

   Base fee 15 4,242 4,044 

   Performance fee 15 – 546 

Service charge expenses 13,754 13,335 

Other expenses 5,089 6,529 

Valuation fees 356 357 

23,441 24,811 

Performance fees and valuation fees of £356,000 (March 2021:£903,000) are treated as capital items and added back 
to income for distribution purposes. Trust Manager base fees represent the portion of base fees payable to the Trust 
Manager for the management of the portfolio and are calculated at 0.30% per annum of the net asset value. 

Other expenses includes a specific bad debt provision of £3,599,000 for rental income and service charge not 
collected from tenants since the beginning of the COVID-19 pandemic (March 2021: £3,752,000). 
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4. Management expenses

Notes
2022 

£’000
2021 

£’000

Appointments Committee fees 162 162

Trustee fees 157 185 

Trust Manager fees 15 1,346 1,348 

Professional and other fees 505 902 

Audit fees 126 104 

2,296 2,701

Trust Manager base fees represent the portion of base fees payable to the Trust Manager for the management of the 
Trust and are calculated as 0.10% per annum of the net asset value. 

The Trustee is entitled to receive a fee based on the Trust’s net asset value, which is calculated and paid quarterly in 
arrears. The Trustee’s fee entitlement is 0.030% per annum on the first £100 million, 0.015% per annum on the next 
£200 million and 0.010% per annum of the Trust’s net asset value over £300 million. The terms of this fee arrangement 
are subject to review on an annual basis by the Appointments Committee. 

Audit fees relate to the financial statement audit of the Trust and its wholly owned subsidiary. No non-audit fees were 
paid to the Trust’s auditors (March 2021: nil).

5. Interest receivable

2022 
£’000

2021 
£’000

Interest on cash and deposits 10 51

6. Interest expense and similar charges

2022 
£’000

2021 
£’000

Interest expense 735 221

Amortisation of loan issue costs 113 112

848 333
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7. Taxation

Factors affecting tax charge

2022 
£’000

2021 
£’000

Net income and gains on investment before taxation 263,304 12,220

Income tax at standard rate of 20.00% (2021: 20.00%) 52,661 2,444

Exemption from tax on capital gains (43,290) 8,009

Permanent differences of disallowable expenses (9,371) (10,453)

Income tax charge – – 

On 26 August 2014, the Trust was approved as an exempt Unauthorised Unit Trust by HMRC, so it is not required to 
withhold tax from unit holders on distributions. 

8. Reconciliation of distribution to net income

2022 
£’000

2021 
£’000

Interim distributions

   – June quarter 11,115 9,020 

   – September quarter 13,654 18,015 

   – December quarter 10,935 13,613 

Final distribution payable 11,506 12,520

47,210 53,168

Net income after taxation for the year 46,854 52,265

Expenses transferred to capital 356 903

Distributions 47,210 53,168

Expenses transferred to capital are the performance fee payable to the Trust Manager and the fees for the valuation 
of the property portfolio as detailed in Note 3. 

9. Property Investments

Freehold 
£’000

Leasehold 
£’000

Lease 
Incentives 

£’000

Property 
Investments  

£’000

Valuation

At 26 March 2021 1,136,944   101,796  (15,700) 1,223,040

Additions at cost 17,877 143 – 18,020

Loss on disposals (11) – – (11)

Revaluation gain 188,464 21,107 159 209,730

Valuation at 25 March 2022 1,343,274 123,046 (15,540) 1,450,780

Historical cost at 25 March 2022 922,046 71,454 – 993,500
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9. Property Investments (continued)

Freehold 
£’000

Leasehold 
£’000

Lease 
Incentives 

£’000

Property 
Investments  

£’000

Valuation

At 26 March 2020 1,245,234 100,091 (11,468) 1,333,858

Additions at cost 88,363 (216) – 88,147 

Proceeds from sale of investments (160,818) – – (160,818)

Profit on disposals 8,372 – – 8,372 

Revaluation loss (44,208) 1,921 (4,232) (46,519)

Valuation at 25 March 2021 1,136,943 101,796 (15,700) 1,223,040 

Historical cost at 25 March 2021 904,279 71,347 – 975,626

The Trust’s investment properties at 25 March 2022 were valued by Knight Frank LLP, qualified valuers, on a market 
basis at £1,466,320,000. The valuations were carried out in accordance with the current edition of RICS Valuation - 
Global Standards, issued by the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (the “Red Book”) which incorporates the 
International Valuation Standards. Knight Frank LLP have recent experience in the location and class of the 
investment property being valued. The method of determining fair value was a combination of the comparable 
method of valuation and the residual method of value. The significant assumption applied is that the development 
will be carried out in accordance with the application and plans submitted. 

The amount recognised in the profit and loss account for the year for rental income from investment property is 
£62,999,000 (March 2021: £70,082,000). Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) arising from 
investment property are £23,441,000 (March 2021: £24,811,000). No contingent rents have been recognised in the 
period or prior year.

Property valuations reconcile to the independent valuers’ report as follows:

2022 
£’000

2021 
£’000

Directly held properties valued by Knight Frank LLP 1,466,320 1,238,740

Lease incentives (15,540) (15,700)

Total property investments 1,450,780 1,223,040

The table below shows the results of the Trust Manager’s evaluation of the sensitivity of the property portfolio valuation 
to changes in unobservable inputs to a reasonable alternative: 

As at 25 March 2022 Change in fair value

Fair value 
£’000

Unobservable 
input

+25bps 
£’000

+50bps 
£’000

Property investments 1,495,770 Equivalent yield 78,628 149,212

Annual Report and Financial Statements 2022 41

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

T
R

U
ST

 M
A

N
A

G
E

R
’S R

E
P

O
R

T
G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L STA

TE
M

E
N

TS
IN

V
E

ST
O

R
 IN

FO
R

M
A

T
IO

N



10. Principal subsidiary and joint venture

Share of 
Limited 

Partnership
Country of 

registration

Subsidiary

Capital Hill Partnership 100.00% UK

Joint Venture

Tower Hill Retail Limited Partnership 50.00% UK

2022 
£’000

2022 
£’000

Investment in joint venture 28,644 21,914

11. Debtors

2022 
£’000

2021 
£’000

Rental income 16,267 20,247 

Prepayments and accrued income

   – due within one year 16,445 15,747 

Other debtors 10,600 9,957 

43,312 45,951 

12. Creditors

2022 
£’000

2021 
£’000

Amounts falling due within one year

Deferred income 13,174 12,653 

VAT 3,757 3,211 

Other creditors and accruals 13,648 15,213

30,579 31,077
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13. Bank borrowings

2022 
£’000

2021 
£’000

Bank loan 48,000 48,000

Less: unamortised loan costs (153) (176)

47,847 47,824

On 17 October 2017, the Trust entered into a £75 million loan facility with Wells Fargo Bank International (WFBI), which 
expires on 31 December 2023. This loan is secured on certain of the Trust’s properties and interest is payable at a 
SONIA floor rate of 0.25%, a Sonia floating rate, a Credit Adjustment Spread of 0.098% plus a margin of between 1.25% 
and 1.35% depending on fund leverage. A commitment fee is also payable at a rate of 0.5% per annum when no loan is 
outstanding, and 40% of the applicable margin per annum when any loan is outstanding.

On 5 November 2018, following a realignment of their European loan booking strategy, the loan facility was transferred 
from WFBI to an affiliate, Wells Fargo Bank National Association, London Branch (WFBNA), with no impact to the Trust’s 
existing loan facility agreement.

As at 25 March 2022, the Trust had an outstanding balance on the loan facility of £48,000,000 which was utilised to 
purchase the Templars Shopping Park in Oxford during December 2020 (March 2021: £48,000,000).

14. Units in issue

Numbers 
of Units 

000
Value 
£’000

At 26 March 2021 196,096 623,690

Redeemed in the year (1,087) (7,466)

At 25 March 2022 195,009 616,224

Numbers 
of Units 

000
Value 
£’000

At 26 March 2020 212,792 729,870

Redeemed in the year (16,696) (106,180)

At 25 March 2021 196,096 623,690
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15. Related party disclosures

During the year under review there were transactions with the following related parties: 

The fees payable to Hermes Alternative Investment Management Limited, the Trust Manager, for the year, including 
irrecoverable VAT, were:

Notes
2022 

£’000
2021 

£’000

Trust Manager base fee – property expenses 3 4,242 4,044 

Trust Manager base fee – management expenses 4 1,346 1,348 

5,588 5,392 

Trust Manager performance fee – property expenses 3 – 546

2022 
£’000

2021 
£’000

The amounts payable at the end of the year were:

Trust Manager base fee – property expenses 1,117 961

Trust Manager base fee – management expenses 372 320

1,489 1,281

 
Trust Manager performance fee – property expenses – 1,150

The Trust Manager is entitled to receive a base fee of 0.40% per annum of the net asset value of the Trust, subject to a 
minimum fee of £1,300,000 per annum. In addition, the Trust Manager may receive performance related fees for Real 
Estate Related Services if the performance of the Trust exceeds the average weighted total return of the agreed 
benchmark, being the average return on the IPD UK Other Balanced Property Fund Index Weighted Average Returns, 
on a three year rolling average basis. The amount of the fee is calculated as 17.5% of the out-performance generated. 
Total fees are capped at 0.80% of the net asset value of the Trust per annum.

The Trust Manager delegates certain property activities to Hermes Real Estate Investment Management Limited (the 
Real Estate Investment Manager). Trust Manager base fee – property expenses and Trust Manager performance fee – 
property expenses listed above are payable by the Trust Manager to the Real Estate Investment Manager. 
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16. Reconciliation of net income to net cash inflow

Notes
2022 

£’000
2021 

£’000

Net income before taxation 46,854 52,265

Interest receivable 5 (10) (51)

Share of results of investment in joint venture (1,709) (1,655)

Expenses transferred to capital 3 356 357 

Increase in debtors 4,348 (12,606)

Decrease in creditors (451) (1,675)

Net cash inflow from operating activities 49,388 36,635

17. Commitments

2022 
£’000

2021 
£’000

Committed property investment activity 6,479             17,783

This relates to capital commitments in respect of approved capital expenditure on properties within the Trust’s 
portfolio, driven by £0.9m for refurbishment of 1st, 5th & 6th floors at 27 Soho Square, £0.8m million towards 
refurbishment Units G and F1 at Maybird Shopping Park, £0.8m for Reconfiguration of Matalan unit for Lidl letting in 
Templars Shopping Park, £0.7m refurbishment at Plantation Wharf Estate, £0.4 million for Unit 21 at Guinness Road 
Trading Estate, £0.4m on Childerditch lane at Horndon Industrial Estate.

18. Events After the Balance Sheet Date
Following the year end, on 23 May 2022, the Trust entered a contract to exchange on the disposal of West Horndon 
Industrial Estate amounting to sales proceeds of £92.8m.
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Valuers’ Report to the  
Trust Manager 

In accordance with our appointment dated 13 May 2011, 
we have prepared the following short Valuation Report. 
We are instructed as Independent Valuers to provide the 
Trust Manager with our opinion of the Market Value of 
all freehold and leasehold properties, held by 
Federated Hermes Property Unit Trust, for financial 
reporting purposes.

We are of the opinion that the aggregate of the Market 
Values of the freehold and leasehold properties as at 
25 March 2022 is £1,495,770,000 (One Billion, Four 
Hundred and Ninety Five Million, Seven Hundred 
and Seventy Thousand Pounds).

£1,495,770,000 (One Billion, Four Hundred and Ninety 
Five Million, Seven Hundred and Seventy Thousand 
Pounds):

“The estimated amount for which an asset or liability 
should exchange on the valuation date between a 
willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s length 
transaction after proper marketing and where the 
parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently 
and without compulsion.”

In our opinion there is no material difference in the 
Market Values now reported and the “Fair Values” of 
the properties, derived in accordance with the RICS 
Valuation – Professional Standards VPS4 (7.1) Fair 
Value and VPGA1 Valuations for Inclusion in Financial 
Statements which adopt the definition of Fair Value 
used by the International Accounting Standards Board: 

“The price that would be received to sell an asset, or 
paid to transfer a liability, in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date.”

As agreed with Federated Hermes Real Estate 
Investment Management Limited, our valuations are 
based on information provided by them, upon which we 
have relied and which has not been verified by us. Our 
assumptions (as defined in the RICS Red Book) relating 
to this information are set out below.

The valuer’s opinion of Market Value was primarily 
derived using recent comparable market transactions on 
arm’s length terms, where available, and appropriate 
valuation techniques (the Investment Method).

We have assumed there to be good and marketable 
titles to the properties. The properties have been valued 
individually, not as part of a portfolio. We have made 
oral enquiries of the appropriate planning authorities 
and have taken into account, insofar as we are aware, 
unusual outgoings, planning proposals and onerous 

restrictions or local authority intentions which affect the 
properties. No allowance has been made in our 
valuation for expenses of realisation or for taxation which 
may arise in the event of development or disposals and 
our valuations are expressed exclusive of any VAT that 
may become chargeable. Our valuations reflect usual 
deductions in respect of purchaser’s costs and, in 
particular, full liability for UK Stamp Duty as applicable at 
the valuation date.

We have been provided with copies of headleases and 
leases in some instances. In respect of recent purchases 
we have been provided with copies of the Trust’s 
solicitors’ reports on title. The portfolio is valued by us 
on a monthly basis for unit pricing purposes and the 
properties are re-inspected on a regular basis.

Our valuations are based on measurements which have 
been provided by Hermes Real Estate Investment 
Management Limited as the Real Estate Investment 
Manager of FHPUT, which were carried out in 
accordance with the RICS Code of Measuring Practice. 
In some cases the areas are provided following rent 
review or letting. 

The adoption of IPMS (International Property 
Measurement Standards), for the office sector, became 
mandatory with effect from 1st January 2016 for all RICS 
members replacing NIA (Net Internal Area) as set out 
under the current Code of Measurement Practice (Sixth 
Edition). It has been agreed with you that until the new 
definition of measurement has been adopted by the 
leasing market, rental analysis for the office sector will 
continue to be shown on a net internal area basis. As or 
when buildings are re-measured, we will present our 
analysis on a dual basis, namely IPMS and NIA.

We have not carried out structural surveys on the 
portfolio and are unable to report that the properties are 
free of any structural fault, rot, infestation or defect of 
any other nature, including inherent weakness due to the 
use in construction of materials now suspect. No tests 
were carried out on any of the technical services.

Minimum Energy Efficiency Standards are the standards 
set out by the Government for let properties in England 
and Wales. Buildings that have an EPC rating of F and G 
must be brought up to standard before they are let 
subject to some conditions, exemptions and relief. This 
commenced from 1 April 2018 for all new lettings and 
they apply to all continuing lettings from 1 April 2020 
for domestic buildings and from 2023 for non-domestic 
buildings. 
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There is currently no standard approach to either the 
provision or the interpretation of ESG-related data and 
property benchmarking. In arriving at our opinion of 
value, we have therefore interpreted the information 
available to us as we consider market participants 
would reflect this.

For Scottish properties, the Assessment of Energy 
Performance of Non-Domestic Buildings (Scotland) 
Regulations 2016 came into force in Scotland in 2016 
and does not incorporate a “ban” on new lettings. 
Owners are encouraged to carry out improvements, or 
improve efficiency through monitoring emissions from 
a building via creating an Action Plan. The Action Plan 
procedure will apply to the sale or letting of larger 
buildings, with a floor area >1,000 sq m. This only 
applies to buildings that are subject to a new sale or 
lease and buildings constructed to building standards 
applicable from March 2002, or otherwise meeting 
those standards, are exempt. 

Where we have been provided with the EPC rating, we 
have taken into account any capital expenditure that you 
have provided to us to improve the demise, to enable 
the property to be let. 

The aftermath of the Grenfell Fire on 14 June 2017 has 
resulted in a wholesale review of the regime relating to 
fire safety. This is in addition to the public inquiry that 
has been established to investigate the circumstances of 
the fire (and which is planned to continue in the first half 
of 2020). 

The Independent Review of Building Regulations and 
Fire Safety led by Dame Judith Hackitt was published in 
May 2018. One of the key recommendations of the 
Hackitt Review was for a new Building Regulations 
regime for residential buildings of 10 storeys (30m) or 
higher. The Government has not yet stated which 
measures recommended in the Hackitt Review will be 
implemented or the timing of any such regulatory 
changes. However, it announced that Building 
Regulations would be amended from 21 December 2018 
to ban the use of combustible materials on the external 
walls of new buildings over 18m containing flats, as well 
as, inter alia, buildings such as new hospitals, residential 
care homes and student accommodation. The ban also 
affects existing buildings undergoing major works or 
undergoing a change of use. 

Although this review is focused on fire safety of tall 
residential buildings, many property occupiers and 
owners across all property sectors have become far 

more aware of fire safety issues since the Grenfell Fire. 
Consequently, the valuation has been undertaken in the 
context of an evolving regulatory environment, with 
higher levels of due diligence being undertaken, in 
respect of fire safety issues during acquisition and 
project construction, amongst market participants.

We have assumed, except where we have been 
informed to the contrary, there to be no adverse ground 
or soil conditions or environmental contamination which 
would affect the present or future use of the properties 
and that the load bearing qualities of the site of each 
property are sufficient to support the buildings 
constructed or to be constructed thereon.

Save as otherwise disclosed, it has been assumed for the 
purpose of valuation that the relevant interests in the 
properties are free of mortgage, charge or other debt 
security and no deduction has been made for such 
charge or debt.

Our valuations assume that the properties would, in all 
respects, be insurable against all usual risks including 
terrorism, flooding and rising water table at normal, 
commercially acceptable premiums.

Those properties previously held within the Tower Hill 
Retail Limited Partnership (B&Q Chelmsford and St 
Albans Retail Park Phases 1 & 2) are reported at 50% 
interest directly within FHPUT. 

We set out below the respective total valuations for the 
directly held properties and Tower Hill Retail Limited 
Partnership properties, allocated by tenure.

Directly Held 
Properties:-

Freehold
£

Leasehold
£

Total 
£

Federated 
Hermes 
Property Unit 
Trust Held as 
Investments: 

£1,343,245,000 £123,075,000 £1,466,320,000 

Tower Hill 
Retail Limited 
Partnership 
Held as 
Investments: 

£29,450,000 – £29,450,000 

Total £1,372,695,000 £123,075,000 £1,495,770,000

The valuer, on behalf of Knight Frank LLP, with the 
responsibility for this report is Gillian Bowman, MA 
MRICS IMC, RICS Registered Valuer. Parts of the 
valuation have been undertaken by additional valuers 
as listed on our file. We confirm that the valuer and 
additional valuers collectively meet the requirements 
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of RICS Valuation - Professional Standards VPS 3 having 
sufficient current knowledge of the particular market 
and the skills and understanding to undertake the 
valuation competently.

We confirm that Knight Frank LLP meets the 
requirements of the Trust in the role of Independent 
Valuer having been appointed in 1996. The signatory of 
this report has been responsible for this instruction since 
January 2022. We further confirm that in relation to 
Knight Frank LLP’s preceding financial year the 
proportion of the total fees paid by the Trust to the total 
fee income of Knight Frank LLP was less than 5%. We 
recognise and support the RICS rules of conduct and 
have procedures for identifying conflicts of interest. 
We are providing an objective and unbiased valuation.  

In accordance with our standard practice, we must state 
that this Valuation Report is for the use only of the party 
to whom it is addressed and no responsibility is 
accepted to any third party for the whole or any part 
o its contents.  

If our opinion of value is disclosed to persons other than 
the addressees of this Report, the basis of valuation 
should be stated.  Neither the whole nor any part of this 
Valuation Report nor any reference thereto may be 
included in any published document, circular or 
statement nor published in any way whatsoever whether 
in hard copy or electronically (including on any web-site) 
without our prior written approval of the form and 
context in which it may appear.

Yours faithfully

Gillian Bowman MA MRICS IMC  
RICS Registered Valuer 
For and on behalf of 
Knight Frank LLP

Reviewed (but not undertaken) by: 

Hazel E Morris MRICS 
RICS Registered Valuer 
For and on behalf of 
Knight Frank LLP
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Independent auditors’ 
report to the Unitholders 
of Federated Hermes 
Property Unit Trust
Report on the audit of the 
financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements of Federated 
Hermes Property Unit Trust (the “Trust”):

 A give a true and fair view of the financial position of 
the Trust as at 25 March 2022 and of the net revenue 
and the net capital gains of its scheme property for 
the year ended; and

 A have been properly prepared in accordance with 
United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting 
Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards, 
comprising FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting 
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of 
Ireland”, and applicable law, and the Trust Deed.

We have audited the financial statements, included 
within the Annual Financial Statements (the “Annual 
Report”), which comprise: the consolidated balance 
sheet as at 25 March 2022; the consolidated statement 
of total return, the consolidated statement of changes 
in net assets attributable to unit holders and the 
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then 
ended; and the notes to the financial statements, 
which include a description of the significant 
accounting policies.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International 
Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)”) and applicable 
law. Our responsibilities under ISAs (UK) are further 
described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit 
of the financial statements section of our report. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion.

Independence
We remained independent of the Trust in accordance 
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 
audit of the financial statements in the UK, which 
includes the FRC’s Ethical Standard and we have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern
Based on the work we have performed, we have not 
identified any material uncertainties relating to events 
or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast 
significant doubt on the Trust’s ability to continue as a 
going concern for a period of at least twelve months 
from the date on which the financial statements are 
authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded 
that the Trust’s Manager’s use of the going concern 
basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial 
statements is appropriate.

However, because not all future events or conditions 
can be predicted, this conclusion is not a guarantee as 
to the Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trust 
Manager with respect to going concern are described in 
the relevant sections of this report.

Reporting on other information 
The other information comprises all of the information in 
the Annual Report other than the financial statements 
and our auditors’ report thereon. The Trust Manager is 
responsible for the other information. Our opinion on 
the financial statements does not cover the other 
information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit 
opinion or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly 
stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, 
our responsibility is to read the other information and, 
in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or 
our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. If we identify 
an apparent material inconsistency or material 
misstatement, we are required to perform procedures 
to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of 
the financial statements or a material misstatement of 
the other information. If, based on the work we have 
performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required 
to report that fact. We have nothing to report based on 
these responsibilities.
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Responsibilities for the financial statements 
and the audit
Responsibilities of the Manager for the 
financial statements
As explained more fully in the Responsibilities and 
Governance statement, the Trust Manager is responsible 
for the preparation of the financial statements in 
accordance with the applicable framework and for being 
satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The Trust 
Manager is also responsible for such internal control as 
they determine is necessary to enable the preparation 
of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trust Manager 
is responsible for assessing the Trust’s ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless the Trust Manager either 
intends to liquidate the Trust or to cease operations, 
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the 
financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes 
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulations. We design 
procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined 
above, to detect material misstatements in respect of 
irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our 
procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, 
including fraud, is detailed below.

Based on our understanding of the Trust, we identified 
that the principal risks of non-compliance with laws and 
regulations related to breaches of UK regulatory 
principles, such as such as those governed by Financial 
Conduct Authority, and we considered the extent to 
which non-compliance might have a material effect on 
the financial statements. We also considered those laws 
and regulations that have a direct impact on the financial 
statements. We evaluated management’s incentives and 
opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial 
statements (including the risk of override of controls), 

and determined that the principal risks were related to 
posting inappropriate journal entries revenue and 
management bias in accounting estimates and 
judgemental areas of the financial statements such as 
the valuation of property investments. Audit procedures 
performed included:

 A Discussions with the Trust Manager, including 
consideration of known or suspected instances of 
non-compliance with laws and regulation and fraud;

 A Reviewing relevant meeting minutes;

 A Identifying and testing journal entries, specifically 
any journals posted as part of the financial year end 
close process; 

 A Designing audit procedures to incorporate 
unpredictability around the nature, timing or extent 
of our testing; and

 A Challenging assumptions and judgements made by 
management in their significant accounting estimates, 
in particular in relation to the valuation of property 
investments including involving our valuations experts 
in the audit of this area. 

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures 
described above. We are less likely to become aware of 
instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations 
that are not closely related to events and transactions 
reflected in the financial statements. Also, the risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher 
than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for 
example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, 
or through collusion.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit 
of the financial statements is located on the Financial 
Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/
auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part 
of our auditors’ report.

Use of this report
This report, including the opinion, has been prepared 
for and only for the unitholders of the Fund as a body 
in accordance with the Trust Deed and for no other 
purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or 
assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any 
other person to whom this report is shown or into whose 
hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our 
prior consent in writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
Chartered Accountants, London 
22 June 2022
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Independent Auditors’ 
Disclaimer Letter

PRIVATE AND CONFIDENTIAL 

The Appointments Committee 
Federated Hermes Property Unit Trust 
150 Cheapside 
London 
EC2V 6ET

Dear Sirs

Request for access to our report dated 22 June 2022

You have asked us to agree to you providing to potential 
customers (the “recipient”) a copy of our Annual report 
dated 22 June 2022 (the “Report”), prepared in 
connection with the audit of our financial statements 
for the year ended 25 March 2022.

To ensure that the recipient has a clear understanding 
of the terms under which the Report is being 
provided to them, a copy of this letter should 
accompany the Report.

We confirm that we give our consent to you doing so on 
the clear understanding that the Report was addressed 
to you and was prepared on your instructions as set out 
in our agreement dated 21 April 2022 and therefore the 
Report will not address or reflect the interests or 
circumstances of the recipient or any other third party. 
Furthermore, we accept no duty or responsibility and 
deny any liability to the recipient or to any other third 
party or otherwise, whether or not the Report influences 
the decision or action of the recipient or any other party.

If our report is given to the recipient, it should be made 
clear that receipt of the Report should not be a 
substitute for enquiries the recipient should undertake 
for its own purposes and any independent advice it 
should obtain. You should also point out to the recipient 
that it will be bound by a duty of confidentiality to 
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, as well as to you, and that 
in respect of any Personal Data in the Report, they are 
required to comply with the Data Protection Act 2018 
and General Data Protection Regulation (EU) 2016/679. 
Consequently, the Report, and information obtained 
from it, must not be made available or copied, in whole 
or in part to any other person without our prior written 

permission which we may, at our discretion, grant, 
withhold or grant subject to conditions (including 
conditions as to legal responsibility or absence thereof). 

Where disclosure of the Report or information contained 
in the Report is required by law or regulation, the 
recipient should i) ensure that a copy of this letter is 
disclosed with such information so that the other party 
receiving the information is on written notice of the 
terms on which the recipient itself had access to it; and 
ii) where legally permissible inform us promptly of the 
specific requirement to disclose and before making 
any disclosure. 

Notwithstanding our consent to the release of the Report 
to the recipient, the Report remains addressed to you and 
it is a matter for you to decide whether the release of the 
Report is appropriate in the circumstances.

In consideration for PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
consenting to you providing the Report to the recipient, 
you agree that you will not hold PricewaterhouseCoopers 
LLP responsible for the consequences of us doing so; 
accordingly PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, its members, 
partners, staff and agents shall have no liability to you, 
whether in contract or in tort (including without limitation 
negligence or breach of statutory duty) or in any way 
whatsoever, for any loss, damage, cost or expense 
suffered by you as a result of the provision of the Report 
to the recipient. Without conferring any greater rights 
than you would otherwise have at law, we accept that this 
does not exclude any liability we may have for death or 
personal injury or for the consequences of our own fraud.

This letter shall be governed and construed in 
accordance with the laws of England. The Courts of 
England and Wales will have exclusive jurisdiction to 
settle any claim, dispute or difference which may arise 
out of or in connection with this letter.

Yours faithfully,

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, 7 More London Riverside, London, SE1 2RT 
T: +44 (0) 2075 835 000, F: +44 (0) 2072 127 500, www.pwc.co.uk 

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England with registered number OC303525. The registered office of 
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP is 1 Embankment Place, London WC2N 6RH. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial 
Conduct Authority for designated investment business.
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Investment Strategy and Objectives
The investments of the Trust consist primarily of freehold 
and leasehold land and buildings. It is the policy of the 
Trust Manager to spread these investments over a wide 
range of properties, so as to maintain a balanced 
investment portfolio with capital growth potential and 
beneficial yield. Properties may also be acquired, 
developed or otherwise dealt with jointly alongside 
other investors, particularly where these provide Unit 
Holders with exposure to property assets of a type or 
size that would not be appropriate for the Trust’s 
portfolio if they were to be held directly. 

The Trust Manager follows policies and practices 
designed to enhance property returns whilst minimising 
risk. These are summarised as follows:

 A The portfolio of properties held by the Trust will be 
diversified between sectors dependent upon the 
potential returns from each sector. The Trust may 
also invest in non-core sectors of the property market 
which display beneficial performance characteristics. 

 A The Trust may invest alongside other investors in 
pooled investments where these provide exposure to 
assets of a size, type or location that are expected to 
provide enhanced returns. The amount of exposure to 
jointly held assets is carefully controlled in accordance 
with the Trust’s investment restrictions. 

 A Properties will be acquired where the characteristics 
of the investment itself indicate outperformance 
through a combination of above average rental 
growth prospects and advantageous movements in 
capitalisation yield. 

 A Properties acquired will mainly be let to tenants of 
a good financial covenant where risk of default is 
considered to be low, although this will be balanced 
with acquisition of investments which offer the 
potential of future value enhancement as a result of 
active management. 

 A There will be a continuing programme of upgrading 
existing properties to improve rental growth 
prospects and capital values wherever appropriate by 
refurbishment, redevelopment or lease restructuring. 

 A Before developments are undertaken, either directly 
or in association with third parties, a careful review of 
the risk to reward ratio of the potential development 
will take place to ensure an acceptable balance 
for that project and for the Trust as a whole, and 
that development will be compliant with the Trust’s 
investment restrictions. 

 A The Trust can enter into derivatives transactions 
which reference property or property return indices. 
The Trust cannot extend its derivatives exposure 
beyond 15% of the value of the Trust’s Gross Assets. 
Derivatives transactions would be used to hedge 
or increase the Trust’s exposure to property when it 
could be better achieved by the use of derivatives 
than by conventional investment transactions. 
The Trust can also enter into ancillary derivatives 
transactions such as interest rate swaps. 

Investment Constraints 
The Trust Manager may invest in property and property 
related investments, the latter to include shares, units, 
bonds or debentures or other interests in any company 
or collective investment scheme whose principal business 
is property investment or development. The Trust 
Manager may also enter into Derivative Transactions 
where such investments derive their value from Property 
or are based on a property return index. The aggregate 
of any such Derivative Transactions entered into must not 
exceed 15% of the value of the Trust’s Deposited 
Property in accordance with the terms of the Trust Deed. 

The Trust Manager sets constraints on the proportions 
that may be invested in indirect vehicles, developments 
and joint vehicles. These are monitored regularly by the 
FHPUT Committee, and the Real Estate Investment 
Manager must comply with these constraints in the 
investment management of the Trust but subject to 
FHPUT Committee discretion. A summary of the 
investment constraints is set out below: 

 A Co-investment – Not more than 10% of gross asset 
value to be held in investments alongside other 
investors. 

 A Debt – No more than 30% of gross asset value. There 
are also constraints on the level of gearing set out in 
the Trust Deed. 

 A Development – Exposure to be no more than 10% of 
gross asset value. 

 A Cash (including deferred considerations) – Usually no 
more than 10% of gross asset value, or subject to a 
waiting list for new investors to be implemented from 
time-to-time. 

 A Maximum relative property size – 10% of gross 
asset value. 

 A Approval is required for any purchase of leasehold 
interests with an unexpired term of less than 50 years, 
non-standard sectors and for the purchase of listed or 
indirect investments. 
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 A The aggregate value of any Derivative Transactions 
entered into must not exceed 15% of gross asset 
value. Any derivative transactions will be approved by 
the FHPUT Committee. 

Membership
The Trust Deed restricts the holding of Units to Exempt 
Funds. An “Exempt Fund” is defined in the Trust Deed 
to mean any person (including a body of persons or 
body corporate), trust, fund or unincorporated 
association that is wholly exempt (otherwise than 
by reason of residence) from capital gains tax or 
corporation tax on capital gains in the United Kingdom 
or which may hold Units in the Trust without prejudicing 
the total exemption of the Trust from tax on capital 
gains under Section 100(2) of the Taxation of 
Chargeable Gains Act 1992 including, as the context 
may require, any person or persons in whom the assets 
comprised in any such trust, fund or unincorporated 
association are from time to time vested or the persons 
having the conduct or administration thereof. 

Further information about the Trust 
including its Units Dealings is available in 
the General Information Memorandum 
at www.hermes-investment.com/ukw/
capabilities/private-markets/real-estate/
fhput/ 
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Notice of Annual  
General Meeting
Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting 
of the unitholders of Federated Hermes Property Unit 
Trust will be held at 150 Cheapside, London, EC2V 6ET 
on Monday 18 July 2022 at 11.00am for the following 
purposes:

1 To receive the Reports of the Trust Manager and 
Auditors and the Financial Statements for the year 
ended 25 March 2022.

2 To re-elect members of the Appointments Committee:

2.1 David Nicol retires, and being eligible, offers 
himself for re-election.

2.2 Andrew McIntyre retires, and being eligible, 
offers himself for re-election.

3 To appoint Ernst & Young as auditors of the Trust, 
to hold office until the conclusion of the next annual 
general meeting at which Financial Statements are laid 
before the unitholders and that their remuneration be 
fixed by the Appointments Committee. 

Please note that for those unitholders who do not wish 
to attend in person, it will be possible to attend (but not 
to vote at) the meeting remotely via Microsoft Teams. 
Video conferencing details will be circulated to all 
unitholders via the Trust’s website https://www.hermes-
investment.com/uki/capabilities/private-markets/real-
estate/hermes-property-unit-trust/.

Unitholders entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting 
may appoint a proxy to attend and vote in their place 
and a unit holder, being a Corporation, may authorise 
any person to be its representative at the Meeting.  
Unitholders attending remotely will not be able to vote 
via Microsoft Teams and are therefore encouraged to 
submit proxy voting forms in advance.

A proxy card is enclosed. As the quorum required for 
the passing of the Resolutions, without adjournment, is 
unitholders present in person or by proxy representing 
not less than one tenth in number of unitholders (being 
not less than two), you are particularly asked to appoint 
either the Chairman or Emilie Rowson as your proxy and 
to complete and return the proxy card. This will not 
preclude you from attending in person and voting at the 
Meeting if you so wish.

To be effective, forms of proxy must be sent by email, 
headed ‘FHPUT AGM’, to fhput@hermes-investment.com 
or deposited at the office of the Trust Manager – 
Federated Hermes Property Unit Trust, Hermes 
Alternative Investment Management Limited, 150 
Cheapside, London EC2V 6ET, by 9am (and no later 
than noon) on Wednesday, 13 July 2022.

A unitholder that is a corporation may also authorise a 
person to be its representative at the AGM. If you wish 
to appoint a corporate representative, you must provide 
their name, position and the authority granting them 
permission to act as your representative by email, 
headed ‘FHPUT AGM’, to fhput@hermes-investment.com 
by 9am (and no later than noon) on Wednesday, 13 July 
2022.  A template corporate representative 
appointment letter can therefore be provided if 
required.  A completed corporate representative 
appointment letter will also be required to be brought 
to the meeting in order for a corporate representative 
to attend and vote.

We understand that the AGM is valued as an 
opportunity for unitholders to voice their opinions and 
to engage with the Manager and the Appointments 
Committee and therefore, we encourage unitholders to 
submit questions in advance of the AGM so that these 
can still be addressed. To ensure that your questions 
are included, questions should be sent by email, 
headed ‘FHPUT AGM’ to fhput@hermes-investment.com 
by Tuesday, 12 July 2022.  Further questions can be 
submitted during the meeting either in person of via 
Microsoft Teams and will be addressed at the end of 
the formal business of the meeting.

Any updates to the AGM arrangements will be 
communicated to you by the Trust Manager via the 
Trust’s website https://www.hermes-investment.com/uki/
capabilities/private-markets/real-estate/hermes-property-
unit-trust/. Unitholders are advised to check the Trust’s 
website for the most up to date position.
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Distribution Analysis and 
Expense Ratios

Quarterly distribution

Quarter to  
Jun 

 2021 
£000

Quarter to  
29 Sep 

2021  
£000

Quarter to  
25 Dec 

2021  
£000

Quarter to  
25 Mar 

2022 
£000

Total
£000

Net distribution 11,115 13,654  10,935   11,506 47,210

Distribution per unit

Quarter to  
24 Jun 

2021  
pence

Quarter to  
29 Sep 

2021  
pence

Quarter to  
25 Dec 

2021  
pence

Quarter to  
25 Mar 

2022  
pence

Total
pence

Net distribution 5.668 6.963 5.607 5.900 24.138

Date paid 15 Aug 21 15 Nov 21 15 Feb 22 15 May 22 

The gross yield on net asset value as at 25 March 2022 was 3.2%. The yield on offer at 25 March 2022 was 3.1%.

Net distribution per unit
As at 25 March

2017 2018 2019 2020 20222021
0p

5p

10p

15p

20p

25p

30p

25.5

21.1
22.7

24.1
22.5

24.1

Source: Hermes Real Estate Investment Management.

Yield on offer price
As at 25 March

2017 2018 2019 2020 20222021
0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

2.0%

2.5%

3.0%

3.5%

4.0%

3.1
3.4

3.2

3.6

2.9
3.1

Source: Hermes Real Estate Investment Management.

Net income is distributed quarterly on 15 February, 15 May, 15 August and 15 November for the periods ended 25 December, 
25 March, 24 June and 29 September respectively, or the business day prior to those dates. Income accrues monthly to unit holders 
to each registration date (usually 26th of each month). Distributions are made net of income tax and management expenses. The 
Trust Manager has no ability to defer/suspend contributions.

Quarter ending 25 March 2022 Quarter ending 25 March 2021

Total expense ratios £’000
% of average

NAV £’000
% of average

NAV

Fund Management Fees 5,588 0.40%  5,392 0.40%

Fund Operating Expenses 1,306 0.09%  1,710 0.13%

Total Expense Ratio 6,894 0.49%  7,102 0.53%

Property Expense Ratio 6,523 0.47% 7,707 0.57%

Real Estate Expense Ratio 13,417 0.96%  14,809 1.10%

Transaction Costs 41 0.00% 6,372 0.47%

Performance Fees – 0.00% 546 0.04%

The Trust’s portfolio turnover ratio was 0.37% (25 March 2021: 9.26%). The total expense ratios are calculated in accordance with AREF 
principles, which are available from www.aref.org.uk. Fund management fees include fees paid to the Trust Manager. Total fees 
payable to the Real Estate Investment Manager in a calendar year are capped at 0.80% of the December net asset value as described 
in note 14. Property expenses include service charge shortfalls and other property expenses. Fund operating expenses represent 
management expenses and valuation fees. These figures do not agree to note 3 and 4 of the financial statements because all expenses 
are included for the properties held in Joint Ventures for the purpose of calculating the TER. The performance fees as a percentage 
of average net asset value for the year can exceed 0.40% because they are calculated, and the fee cap is applied based on a net asset 
value at the end of a calendar year as described in note 15 to the financial statements whereas the Trust’s year end is 25 March. All the 
costs above are borne from the Fund and paid from income, with the exception of performance fees which is paid from capital. The 
Trust retains no commission and service charge rebates. The total expense ratios have been calculated consistently with prior years.

Unaudited
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Unit Holder Information
Net Asset Value Per Unit

Mar
2017

Mar
2018

Mar
2019

Mar
2022

Mar
2021

Mar
2020

£0

£1

£2

£3

£4

£5

£6

£7

£8

£6.11
£6.53

£7.63

£6.71£6.58 £6.81

Distribution Per Unit 

Mar
2017

Mar
2018

Mar
2019

Mar
2022

Mar
2021

Mar
2020

0p

5p

10p

15p

20p

25p

30p

22.7
24.1

22.5

3.9 3.6 3.3 3.2

21.1

3.9

24.1

3.2

25.5

Distribution, pence per unit (gross of tax, net of expenses)
Gross yield on closing NAV (%)

During the year 1,086,501 units were redeemed. 

Bid Offer Price Variation (£)

Mar
2017

Mar
2018

Mar
2019

Mar
2020

£0

£2

£4

£6

£8

£10

6.48
6.97 7.23

6.04 6.07 6.336.51
7.21 7.02

7.53
8.11

6.62

Mar
2022

Mar
2021

Highest issue price Lowest cancellation price

NAV and total number of units as at 25 March (million) 

Mar
2017

Mar
2018

Mar
2019

Mar
2020

0

500

1000

1500

2000
1,

39
8 1,

55
6

1,
61

1

1,
42

7

1,
28

0

22
9

23
6

23
7

21
2

19
6

1,
48

9

19
5

Mar
2022

Mar
2021

NAV No. of units

The fund’s bid and offer prices and the NAV have been determined in accordance with AREF’s Fund Pricing 
Recommendations (August 2014). The fund is priced at the ‘Standard NAV’ for all investors.

The proportion of total number of units in issue

Number 
of

unit 
holders

Total
Holding 

(%)

< 3% 84 92%

3% – 10% 7 8%

10% – 20% 0 0%

> 20% 0 0%

Total 91 100%

Number 
of

unit 
holders

Total
Holding 

(%)

Internal investors 0 0%

External investors 91 100%

Total

Largest investor 1 8.1%

Ownership held by top 5 investors 5 31.7%

Unit Prices

Month
Offer

(£)
Bid
(£)

March 22 8.11 7.53

February 22 7.86 7.30

January 22 7.81 7.25

December 21 7.75 7.19

November 21 7.60 7.06

October 21 7.50 6.97

September 21 7.40 6.87

August 21 7.24 6.73

July 21 7.19 6.68

June 21 7.14 6.63

May 21 6.99 6.49

April 21 6.95 6.46
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Alternative Investment Fund 
Managers Directive (AIFMD) – 
Remuneration disclosure
Hermes Alternative Investment Management Limited 
(“HAIML”), manager of Federated Hermes Property Unit 
Trust (“FHPUT”), is authorised by the FCA as an AIFM 
and appointed as such, with effect from 22 June 2014. 

Requirements for compliance with the AIFMD in the UK are 
set out in the FCA Investment Funds sourcebook (FUND). 
Rule FUND 3.2.2 in this sourcebook requires certain 
information to be provided to prospective investors. 

The FCA’s general guidance on the AIFM Remuneration 
Code (SYSC 19B) was published in January 2014. Under 
the Code, the Remuneration Committee of Hermes 
Fund Managers Limited in its oversight of HAIML must 
make relevant remuneration disclosures no later than six 
months following the end of the financial year, splitting 
remuneration into fixed and variable remuneration and 
breaking down remuneration for the category of AIFM 
Code Staff which is defined as all staff whose 
professional activities have a material impact on the risk 
profiles of the AIFM or of the Alternative Investment 
Funds (“AIFs”) the AIFM manages. 

Code Staff in HAIML are defined as the directors, 
members of the management board, employees 
performing a significant influence function and other 
senior managers and head of control functions. 

Hermes Remuneration Committee approves the list of 
AIFM Code Staff annually. In addition, AIFM Code Staff are 
notified of their status and the implications of this annually. 

Approach to Remuneration 
FHPUT is managed by HAIML, which is a subsidiary of 
Hermes Investment Management (“Hermes”). 

The Remuneration Committee of Hermes has established 
a Remuneration Philosophy/Policy and its purpose is to 
ensure that the remuneration of employees is consistent 
with and promotes sound and effective risk management 
and does not encourage risk-taking which is inconsistent 
with the risk profiles, rules or instruments of incorporation 
across Hermes and the AIFM. 

This approach applies to HAIML and the AIFs it manages. 

Employee remuneration disclosure 
The total amount of remuneration paid by HAIML to its 
staff is zero, as all AIFM staff are employed by Hermes.

The table below provides an overview of the following: 

 A Aggregate total remuneration paid by Hermes to all 
employees that support HAIML; and 

 A Aggregate total remuneration paid by Hermes to all 
HAIML AIFM Remuneration Code Staff. 

Please further note that due to the roles of AIFM staff, 
this remuneration is in respect of the provision of 
services to other companies in Hermes as well as other 
funds of HAIML. The remuneration figures have been 
prorated against the AIFM’s AUM relative to Hermes’. 
‘Fixed remuneration’ includes 2021 Leavers.

Headcount

Total 
Remuneration

(£’000s)

Hermes employees that 
also cover HAIML 407 1,911

of which

   Fixed remuneration 1,205

   Variable remuneration 706

Hermes Code Staff 
employees that also 
cover HAIML 30 747

of which 

   Senior Management 7 268

   Other Code Staff 23 479

AIFM activities
The following table provides an overview of the size and 
composition of the funds managed by HAIML, including 
FHPUT. This shows the total number of funds managed, 
the split between, and proportions of AIF, UCITS and 
other funds.

Number 
of  

Funds

AUM (GBP)
As at  

31 Dec 2021
% of  
AUM

HAIML 2 £1,550,953,526

of which

Alternative 
investment funds 2 £1,550,953,526

UCITS funds

Other funds

Unaudited
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Glossary

AIFM Remuneration Code Staff
Total remuneration will be reported for all AIFM 
Remuneration Code Staff as at the AIF’s financial year-
end. Broadly speaking, AIFM Remuneration Code Staff 
are those employees who are considered could have a 
material impact on the risk profile of HAIML or any of the 
AIFs it manages (including FHPUT). 

AuM 
Assets under management are measured at fair market 
value on the relevant cut-off date. The latest available 
valuations are reported in the Annual Report & Accounts. 

Other Code Staff 
AIFM Remuneration Code Staff that are not considered 
Senior Management, per the definition below. 

Other funds 
Those funds that are not classified either as alternative 
investment funds or UCITS funds. 

Senior Management 
AIFM Remuneration Code Staff who are members of the 
AIFM’s board. 

Total Remuneration 
Total remuneration reported will be the sum of salary, 
cash bonus, any deferred annual bonus, the fair value of 
any long term incentive awards, plus the estimated value 
of any pension and benefits in kind, awarded in respect 
of performance in the reportable financial year, i.e. 
1 January 2021 – 31 December 2021.
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Alternative Investment Fund 
Managers Directive
(AIFMD) – Risk profile and 
risk management
systems disclosure
Hermes Alternative Investment Management Limited 
(“HAIML”), manager of Federated Hermes Property Unit 
Trust (“FHPUT”), is authorised by the FCA as an AIFM 
and appointed as such, with effect from 22 June 2014. 

Requirements for compliance with the AIFMD in the UK 
are set out in the FCA Investment Funds sourcebook 
(FUND). Rules FUND 3.2.5R and FUND 3.2.6R in this 
sourcebook requires certain information to be provided 
to prospective investors. 

The current risk profile of the AIF 
The Trust is a property unit trust that invests in real 
property in the UK. Real estate investments involve a 
high degree of risk that can result in substantial losses. 
The Trust’s investment performance may be volatile, and 
investors could potentially lose all amounts invested. 

The Manager has procedures in place to mitigate these 
risks, as documented below, however all prospective 
Investors must rely on their own examination of the 
legal, taxation, financial and other consequences of an 
investment in the Trust including the merits of investing 
and the risks involved. 

An investment in the Trust will involve significant risk 
for a number of reasons including, but not limited to, 
the following: 

 A Future and past performance – The performance 
of the Trust’s prior investments is not necessarily 
indicative of the Trust’s future results. While the 
Manager intends for the Trust to make investments 
that have estimated returns commensurate with the 
risks undertaken, there can be no assurances that any 
targeted internal rate of return will be achieved. On 
any given investment, loss of principal is possible. 

 A Manager’s personnel – There can be no assurance 
that the employees of the Manager will continue 
to provide services to the Manager throughout the 
Trust’s life. The loss of key personnel could have a 
material adverse effect on the Trust. 

 A Market risk – The property market in the UK is 
susceptible to instability which could adversely affect 
the value of the Trust’s investments. Volatility may 

also make it more difficult for the Trust to accurately 
value its investments or to sell investments on a timely 
basis. These developments may also adversely affect 
the broader economy, which in turn may adversely 
affect the ability of tenants to make rental and other 
payment when due. Such developments could, in 
turn, reduce the value of assets owned by the Trust 
and adversely affect the Net Asset Value of the Trust. 

 A Contractor risk – Investment properties and 
developments are operated and maintained by 
external parties under contractual relationships. Poor 
performance or insufficient business management 
may lead these third parties to cease trading which 
may negatively affect related investments. 

 A Regulatory and political risk – The UK Government 
or its regulatory agencies may take actions that affect 
the way in which the Trust or its investments are 
regulated. This could limit or preclude the Manager’s 
ability to achieve the Trust’s investment strategy 
and objectives. 

 A Due diligence may not reveal all material risks 
related to an investment – Before the Trust 
makes an investment, the Manager will conduct 
due diligence on the investment to the extent that 
the Manager determines in its discretion to be 
reasonable and appropriate based on the facts and 
circumstances applicable to the investment. External 
consultants, surveyors, legal advisers and other 
professionals may be involved in the due diligence 
process to varying degrees depending on the type 
of investment. Nevertheless, when conducting due 
diligence, the Manager and the Trust will only be 
able to rely on resources available to them, including 
information provided by the seller of the investment 
and, in some cases, third party investigations. 
Accordingly, there can be no assurance that the due 
diligence process carried out with respect to any 
investment will reveal or highlight all relevant facts 
that may be necessary or helpful in evaluating such 
investment. There can also be no assurance that 
such an investigation will result in an investment 
being successful. 
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The risk management systems employed 
by the AIFM to manage those risks 
The Manager has numerous controls in place to mitigate 
the risks identified above, these include the following: 

 A Investment team – The Manager’s investment team 
conducts detailed analysis and reviews of investment 
opportunities and prepares financial models to 
support the recommendation of investments. The 
team has significant investment experience with the 
Fund Manager having over 20 years’ experience in 
the industry. 

 A Investment process – The risks are mitigated 
through the application of a consistent and well 
established investment process. 

 A Investment Committee – The Manager has a 
formally constituted investment committee which 
considers and if sought fit, approves all investments. 
Key investment information, material risks and their 
mitigants are presented to the Investment Committee 
at formal interactions during the investment process 
and are covered in investment papers as well as 
verbal reports. Upon receipt of a final investment 
recommendation, the Investment Committee will 
decide on whether to proceed with or decline the 
opportunity, or conduct further due diligence. This 
decision is documented in the Investment Committee 
minutes, copies of which are retained. 

 A FHPUT Committee – In June 2013, the Manager 
formed the FHPUT Committee which approves 
investment strategy and sets and monitors a 
framework of investment constraints within which 
the Trust Manager must act. These constraints are 
designed to protect investors’ interests by limiting 
exposure to various risks. 

 A Diversification – The Manager maintains a balanced 
investment portfolio diversified between sectors, 
spreading risks over a wide range of properties. 

 A External legal counsel – The legal documentation 
pertaining to the execution of transactions is 
reviewed, negotiated and finalised by external legal 
counsel in consultation with the Investment Team. 

 A Leverage – The Trust has a maximum leverage limit 
of 130%. 
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Further Information
For more information about the Trust go to www.fhput.co.uk or contact www.hermes-investment.com/ukw/
capabilities/private-markets/real-estate/fhput/.
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